
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 28 June 2016 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane (Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

20 June 2016 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
28 June 2016 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 6 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 

 

4.   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR   

 Members are asked to elect a Vice-Chair for the 2016-17 Municipal 
Year. 

 

5.   ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT  7 - 39 

6.   NOISE NUISANCE PREVENTION  40 - 51 

7.   POLICING & CRIME UPDATE  52 - 59 

8.   STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2016-19  60 - 115 

9.   THE USE OF REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 
(RIPA) AND CCTV IN THE BOROUGH  

116 - 123 

10.   WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  124 - 127 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 12 April 2016 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy, 
Sharon Holder and Charlie Dewhirst 
 
Other Councillors: Wesley Harcourt 
 
Officers: Ainsley Gilbert, David Gawthorpe, Sue Harris, Kathy May, Thajinder Ghai 
and Anthony Leonard (SERCO) 
 

 
49. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2016 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

50. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Steve Hamilton. 
 

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

52. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Chair invited members of the public present to make any comments in 
relation to issues on the agenda as part of that item. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

53. PLANNING ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT  
 
David Gawthorpe, deputy team leader, development plans team, explained 
that his team was responsible for writing the council’s planning policies. At 
present the council had two adopted planning policies: the core strategy and 
the development management local plan. All planning authorities were 
required to publish a monitoring report on the operation of their planning 
policies at least annually. The monitoring report included key indicators, and 
covered areas such as sustainability, performance against benchmarks, the 
adoption of neighbourhood plans and thee duty to cooperate with 
neighbouring planning authorities.  
 
Mr Gawthorpe explained that the council had a target of 1031 new homes per 
year. The number of homes completed in 2014-15 was 1147, which exceeded 
the target, and although it was 8 less than 2013-4 it was significantly higher 
than the 422 homes completed in 2012-13. The number of homes given 
planning permission in 2014-15 was 4774, which was a significant drop on 
the 6563 approved in 2013-14, however, this figure was inflated because of 
the massive nature of the Earl’s Court scheme which had been approved in 
that year.  
 
Only 11 percent of the units approved, and 18 percent of those completed, 
were classed as affordable, compared to a target of 40 percent. These figures 
had been reduced by developers making use of viability assessments which 
allowed them not to provide affordable housing. 68 percent of permitted 
conversions created flats with two or more bedrooms, which provided the 
borough with more family sized accommodation.  
 
The employment rate had increased to 77 percent, whilst the number of 
working age people on out of work benefits had fallen from 2.5 percent to just 
1.8 percent.  
 
Environmental indicators were good, with the amount of carbon dioxide 
generated per capita falling from 5.6 tonnes in 2013-14 to 5.4 tonnes in 2014-
15. On site renewable energy generation continued to be included in 
applications. Usage of private transport, such as cars and motorbikes, had 
fallen over the year, whilst the proportion of trips made by public transport had 
increased.  
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked when planning permission had been granted for 
the homes counted in the figures for 2014-15, as he recognised that some of 
the schemes had been submitted well before April 2014. David Gawthorpe 
explained that the date used was the date the decision notice was issued, 
which might be much later than the Planning and Development Control 
Committee meeting which gave approval for the development as S.106 
agreements were debated before a decision was issued.  
 
A resident asked whether the council knew if the family sized homes being 
built were being bought and lived in by families. David Gawthorpe said that 
this was not monitored; he explained that the Mayor of London’s definition for 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

family sized homes was used as the basis for the indicator. He confirmed that 
HMOs would not be counted as family sized accommodation. 
 
Councillor Harcourt noted the good work the borough was doing to promote 
cycling and asked whether the shift towards cycling was monitored in the 
report. David Gawthorpe agreed to look into this. 
 

54. FUTURE WASTE AND STREET CLEANSING SERVICES - INVOLVING 
THE CITIZEN  
 
Sue Harris, director of cleaner, greener and cultural services, explained that a 
Futures Board had been held recently to discuss waste and street cleaning. 
This had brought cabinet members, officers and stakeholders together to 
discuss the issues. This meeting had decided to set up three task and finish 
groups on communications, performance management and the relationship of 
the service and contractor with private sector and social landlords. These 
groups were due to report back to the leader of the council in September 
2016.  
 
Kathy May, head of waste and street enforcement, updated the committee on 
actions taken since the last meeting. Serco had looked into reporting options 
for frontline staff, but the initial quotes for the technology required had been 
prohibitive. Further investigations were planned. At Lakeside Road longer 
patrols were planned to cover the whole day to try to prevent dumping. 
Stickers had been distributed to residents however these had been withdrawn 
as they had created negative publicity about the council; there had been 
limited demand for the stickers so it was not proposed to reprint them. ‘A 
boards’ had been successful in reducing dumping, especially when first 
installed in a location and so it was proposed to purchase more of these and 
to move them around regularly. Street scene enforcement now had access to 
CCTV in their offices, but this had proven to be less helpful than had been 
hoped, as the quality of the images was often not good enough to allow 
officers to prosecute offenders.  
 
Sue Harris asked whether the committee would support the use of CCTV 
images on posters in the vicinity of fly-tip sites in order to help identify 
offenders and deter further dumping. The Chair asked whether officers would 
be able to prosecute on the basis of a photograph being identified. Kathy May 
explained that it would depend on what other evidence was available; it was 
thought however, that seeing the photograph might encourage offenders to 
admit to their crime when questioned, and deter others. Councillor Dewhirst 
said that he supported the idea, but that if it proved difficult to use real 
pictures of offenders, the deterrent effect of a mocked up photo of someone 
dumping rubbish on a poster might be worthwhile. Councillor Harcourt 
suggested that the number of fines issued in an area could be added to the 
poster. Councillor Holder suggested that the pictures could be posted on the 
council’s website to try to identify offenders. A resident agreed that the 
posters would be a good deterrent.  
 
Councillor Dewhirst said that many of the issues with fly-tipping were caused 
by the transient nature of some of the borough’s population. He suggested 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

that more education was needed for new residents and asked whether the 
council ran a service for people who were moving out. Kathy May explained 
that the service was trying to get waste information included in council tax 
notices, so that new residents would know how to dispose of waste, and that 
a cheap bulky waste service was offered, but that this was not well used.  
 
Sue Harris asked whether the committee would be prepared to see fines for 
littering increased from £80 to £150, and fines for fly tipping increased to 
£400. The Chair said he felt more substantial fines for fly-tipping seemed 
appropriate. A resident asked whether on the spot collection of fines and self-
funding litter patrols had been considered. Kathy May said that cash 
collection on site was resisted because of the difficulty of auditing the 
process, and collection rates for fixed penalty notices issued and collected at 
a later date was high. Sue Harris explained that the model for self-funding 
litter patrols had been considered, but that the current council model did not 
work in that way. The resident suggested that an external contractor be used, 
but Councillor Harcourt explained that there were concerns about the control 
of enforcement agents who needed to collect sufficient fines to provide the 
company with profit. Councillor Harcourt agreed that officers would look into 
how the scheme was operating in other areas, and if the feedback was 
positive, officers would consult about the idea. He agreed to provide the 
resident with a decision on whether such a scheme would be implemented at 
a future PAC meeting.  
 
A resident asked what the decriminalisation of waste, referred to in paragraph 
4.15 of the report, meant in practice. Kathy May explained that the legislation 
allowing officers to prosecute those who presented their waste other than as 
was required by the local authority had been made harder to use; government 
had felt that the notices were too heavy handed but the additional restrictions 
imposed had rendered them unworkable for most local authorities.  
 
The Chair asked whether the trial whereby large bins were left in accessible 
locations for residents in Kensington and Chelsea had proven a success. 
Kathy May said that as the trial had only recently launched it was too early to 
tell. She explained that the scheme was in addition to normal waste 
collections, and that residents had been invited to place waste in 1,100L bins, 
which were being placed in strategic locations around the borough. She said 
that the key risks from the scheme were the attraction of dumping at the bin 
locations, siting of the bins, and a reduction in the recycling rate as residents 
could more easily dispose of residual waste than recyclable waste. The 
results of the trial would be available to the task and finish groups set up by 
the futures board.  
 
Councillor Cassidy explained that residents had raised the concentration of 
HMOs at a recent planning meeting and noted that this was often considered 
to be a cause of increased fly-tipping. Sue Harris explained that the council 
had policies on waste storage facilities, but that there was no policy on the 
concentration of HMOs. Kathy May said that refuse and recycling lorry rounds 
were reconfigured where a cluster of HMOs generated more waste. 
Councillor Harcourt felt that waste storage facilities were vital, and that 
stronger wording ought to be included in the new Local Plan. A resident 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

suggested that examples of best practice could be included. Anthony 
Leonard, Contract Manager for SERCO, agreed to ask area managers to take 
pictures of good designs, although he noted that these were often more 
expensive.  
 
The Chair noted that on a recent walkabout some waste had been left behind 
as it was not presented correctly; he asked how residents were reminded of 
what they ought to be doing with their rubbish. Anthony Leonard explained 
that residents currently got a card put through their door, however this system 
was slow and not terribly effective. New hangers for wheeled bins had been 
introduced, but further review was necessary. 
 
Councillor Cassidy asked whether properties rented out by the night through 
sites such as ‘airbnb’ needed a commercial waste contract. Sue Harris said 
that it depended on the precise circumstances of the property.  
 
A resident explained that he and the Chair had been shown how the ‘report it’ 
system worked and had identified that the problem was a lack of action being 
taken by street scene enforcement officers when they received reports, 
combined with a lack of proper management oversight. This had led to some 
thirty abandoned bikes the resident had reported, in some cases as long ago 
as 2011, remaining on the streets. He had also conducted a test of how the 
system was currently operating, reporting an abandoned bike in 
Hammersmith Broadway on 19 January 2016; this had not then been 
removed for 24 days, at which point Sue Harris had intervened to get it 
cleared. There was however some good news as the abandoned bicycles 
outside the town hall had now been removed and the stands were being used 
regularly. Sue Harris thanked the resident for his work, and agreed that the 
service had not been good enough. She explained that new procedures were 
being introduced to allow managers to track whether reports were being dealt 
with appropriately and officers who failed to meet the standards expected of 
them would be disciplined.  
 
Sue Harris asked whether the committee felt that ‘report it’ should give 
residents the option of whether a rubbish dump was cleared or investigated. 
The Chair suggested that it would be better if the question asked whether the 
resident thought that it was likely that there would be evidence of who had 
dumped the waste. Kathy May said that the question would need to be 
phrased carefully to avoid members of the public handling or removing 
evidence. The resident would also need to be informed that the investigation 
might delay the clearance of the waste. Anthony Leonard explained that in the 
north of the borough enforcement officers and the SERCO supervisor had co-
ordinated enforcement action and clearance so that soon after investigations 
were complete the waste could be removed. He hoped that this arrangement 
could be developed elsewhere. Councillor Cassidy asked whether recognition 
schemes for good work existed. Kathy May said that this was mostly done 
informally, as performance could be impacted upon by the area in which staff 
were asked to work. 
 
Councillor Holder suggested that the telephone number for reporting dumped 
waste be promoted more widely, for example by putting it on recycling sacks. 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Sue Harris agreed to look into this issue, and whether it could be put on the 
side of vehicles. 
 

55. WORK PROGRAMMING  
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked that the work programme for the committee be 
added to all future agendas. He also asked for an item on Street Markets to 
be brought to a future meeting. 
 

56. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
Members noted that the next meeting would be held on 28 June 2016. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.30 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Ainsley Gilbert 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 6



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
  

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
RESIDENTS’ SERVICES POLICY & 

ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

28 JUNE 2016 
 

 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016 
 

 
Report of the Director for Environmental Health 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 

Key Decision: No  
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director:  
 
Nicholas Austin  
Director for Environmental Health 
 

Report Author:  
 
Ann Ramage 
Head of Environmental Health 
Commercial 
 

 
Contact Details: Ann Ramage 
 
Tel: 020 7341 5612 
E-mail: ann.ramage@rbkc.gov.uk  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:ann.ramage@rbkc.gov.uk


1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This is an information report and is a summary of the work of the 

Environmental Health Service Group between 1st April 2015 and the 31st 
March 2016.  
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. The committee is invited to review the Environmental Health Annual Report 
and make comments on it.  
 

 
3. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
3.1 None 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES:  
 
Appendix 1 Environmental Health Service Group Annual Report 2015-2016. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environmental Health  
Service Group  
Annual Report  

2015-2016 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 The London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 9



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 2 of 31 

Contents Page 
 
 
1.  Foreword     Page 3               
 
2. Commercial Services      Page 5                                   
         
3.  Pest Control     Page 10        
                                 
4.  Environmental Quality   Page 13                       
         
5.  Noise and Nuisance   Page 17                                          
       
6.        Private Housing     Page 19                                          
 
7. Licensing       Page 22 
  
8.        Trading Standards    Page 25                                                       
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you have any questions or comments about our services, please 
contact us;  
 
 
Environmental Health Service Group 
 
The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Hammersmith Town Hall 
275 King Street 
London 
W6 9JU 
 
 
 
Tel: 0208 753 1081 
E-mail: cleaner.greener@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

mailto:cleaner.greener@lbhf.gov.uk


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 3 of 31 

1. FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH  
 
This Annual Report is a summary of the work of the Environmental Health Service 
Group between 1st April 2015 and the 31st March 2016.  
 
This Service Group covers the following areas: 
 
 Commercial  

 Food Safety and Infectious Diseases 

 Health and Safety 

 Pest Control  
 
Licensing and Trading Standards 

 Licensing  

 Trading Standards  
 
Residential  

 Environmental Quality  

 Noise and Nuisance  

 Private Housing  
 

The Report includes details about our service aims, objectives, key achievements 
and performance in 2015/2016 and some of our planned work for 2016/2017. 

Environmental Health aims to contribute to the council’s mission to deliver the 
following eight outcomes that reflect what residents tell us matter most, while 
continuously improving our performance: 

 Economic growth 

 The best start in life for children 

 Resident involvement 

 Decent homes 

 Reducing homelessness 

 Supporting vulnerable adults 

 A safer and healthier place 

 A cleaner, greener, sustainable borough 
 
 
The Council is going through a period of fundamental change in the way it delivers 
its business and is committed to protecting front line services to residents and 
businesses.  
 
We will aim to;  
 

 Carry out our activities in a way that supports those we regulate to comply and 
grow  

 Provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those we regulate and 
hear their views  

Page 11



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 4 of 31 

 Protect residents, visitors and workers in the Borough especially those who are 
vulnerable 

 Base regulatory activities on risk  

 Share information about compliance and risk 

 Ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help those we 
regulate meet their responsibilities to comply 

 Ensure that our approach to regulation is open and transparent.  
 
Much of our work and enforcement activity involves important collaborative working 
with others. We collect feedback in a variety of ways from our residents and 
customers and we will continue to seek better ways to engage and use any feedback 
to improve our services.   

We aim to be the best council, working in partnership with schools, health, the police, 
the Third sector and other key organisations. 

We will deliver increased value for money and raise commercial revenue while 
improving frontline services, discharging statutory duty, and reducing the cost of the 
council to residents. At the core of our outcomes is the ambition to increase social 
inclusion in everything we do 

 
 
Nicholas Austin 
Director for Environmental Health 
  

Page 12



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 5 of 31 

 
COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

      
 
 

 
          
1.      SERVICE AIMS 
 
1.1 Our aim is to protect the health, safety and welfare of people who may be 

exposed to risks from food or work activities within the Borough, including 
employees and members of the public. This is done by securing 
improvements in food handling, the working environment, and through 
promoting the health of the population. 
 

2.       HEALTH AND SAFETY OBJECTIVES 
 

2.1 Health and Safety legislation is enforced in premises where the local authority 
is the enforcing authority. We work closely with the Health and Safety 
Executive to ensure a joined up approach.  
 

2.2 We protect the health, safety and welfare of employees, self-employed and 
others affected by workplace operations through the investigation of 
accidents, incidents and complaints, inspections, advice and enforcement. 

 
2.3 Enforcement action including the serving of improvement and prohibition 

notices, seizure/detention of unsafe articles and prosecutions where 
appropriate. 

 
2.4 We are responsible for enforcing the Safety at Sports Grounds Act 1975. A 

Safety at Sports Grounds Certificate is issued by the Council for the three 
Borough’s football clubs, Queens Park Rangers, Chelsea and Fulham. A 
minimum of 2 Safety Advisory Group meetings are held every Season for 
each of the clubs. During the year a minimum of six During Performance 
Inspections are carried out at each club to ensure public safety is maintained 
at the events. Additional inspections may be required at short notice where for 
example the Police have categorized the match as high risk due to the 
potential misbehavior of fans.  

 

Page 13

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCPSOj9v71ccCFQyb2wodkS4IEg&url=http://nocrowds.blogspot.com/2009/02/londons-north-end-road-market.html&ei=c6vlVbSJIYy27gaR3aCQAQ&psig=AFQjCNHjzA3q_1kIYhSq9XP8gywcxTBQbg&ust=1441201367304901
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCLiNkNDt-McCFcxwGgod0RsKbA&url=http://www.bristol.gov.uk/page/business-bristol/food-safety-inspections&psig=AFQjCNGvgo3E9YQqgK8Dk0RtgeTuaci1nw&ust=1442400195644658


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 6 of 31 

2.5 We monitor large public events such as the AEGON Tennis Tournament held 
at the Queen’s Club, where over 50,000 people visit. The Council has secured 
a contract with World Polo to host an annual polo match at Hurlingham Park. 
Polo teams from all over the world entertain 30,000 guests over a three-day 
weekend event. The annual Oxford and Cambridge Boat Race passes 
through a stretch of the Thames within the Borough, and all of these events 
and others are monitored for public safety. 

 
2.6 We lead on enforcement of the Health Act 2006, which tackles smoking inside 

commercial premises, to support a Smokefree agenda. 
 
 

3.  FOOD SAFETY OBJECTIVES 
 

3.1 To ensure that food is produced and provided safely by food businesses in 
the Borough and to reduce food borne illnesses and contamination of food. 
We do this in 1,975 registered food premises.  
 

3.2 To protect the consumer by ensuring all food sold, is safe, meets 
compositional and labeling requirements and is legally imported. 
 

3.3 To investigate food poisoning notifications and outbreaks and other infectious 
diseases. 

 
3.4 To monitor exhibitions at Olympia which can attract attendances of over 

30,000 people and sees large numbers of temporary caterers and exhibitors 
who sell or handle food. Westfield at White City is one of the largest retail 
parks in Europe where there is a 14 screen cinema and approximately 100 
restaurants, bars, and cafes.  

 
3.5 The Borough is seeing a significant rise in new developments such as the 

Earls Court site and Old Oak Common. The extension to Westfield is in 
progress and is expected to be open in 2017 and there will be a large John 
Lewis store and a further 30 food outlets. The conversion of the BBC site is 
under development which will house a hotel, spa, restaurants and shops. 

 
 

4.      LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 

4.1 We are responsible for licensing high risk premises and individuals that offer 
massage and special treatments. These include lasers, manicures, sun beds 
and high invasive techniques such as tattooing and cosmetic piercing that 
have the potential for cross contamination from organisms such as Hepatitis 
B. 

 
4.2 We have a Responsible Authority role to respond to license consultations 

under the Licensing Act 2013. This applies to licensed premises such as 
public houses, restaurants and off licenses and extends to many events that 
are held in the Borough. 

Page 14



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 7 of 31 

 
4.3 We inspect premises and issue licences for explosive registrations. 
 
4.4 We liaise with the City of London Vets and issue licences relating to Animal 

Health and welfare.  
 
 

5.      KEY ACHIEVEMENTS  
 
5.1 There were 1,975 registered food premises at the end of the financial year 

and a total of 926 food safety inspections were carried out.   
 
5.2 We responded to and dealt with 876 food and health and safety service 

requests. 
 

5.3 We carried out 34 During Performance Inspections, focussed inspections and 
annual inspections across the three football clubs in the Borough. 
 

5.4 We investigated a complex Legionella case involving three Edwardian 
Mansion blocks, containing 211 flats and affecting 1,500 residents, the 
majority of whom were elderly. 

 
5.5 We sampled 100 food and water items. 15 samples were taken as part of the 

Food Standards Agency coordinated sampling programme checking for 
chemical and labelling compliance. 

5.6 We served 44 Hygiene Improvement Notices, all of which were complied with. 

5.7 We prosecuted a food business operator who pleaded guilty to a total of eight 
offences and was fined £30,000 and ordered to pay costs the Council’s costs 
of £4,327.50 and a £120 victim surcharge.  

5.8 We served 12 Health and Safety at Work Act Improvement Notices and 
1Prohibition Notice which were all complied with. 

5.9 We issued 366 Massage and Special Treatment premises licences and 
therapists registrations bringing in income of almost £122,000. 

5.10 We delivered a National Food Safety Week project promoting food hygiene 
and food safety to the Borough’s residents. 

5.11 We delivered the Young Chef of the Year competition, an annual event, where 
under 16s attending the Borough’s schools take part in a cooking competition. 

5.12 We liaised with the organisers of large events that take place in the Borough 
which include; AEGON Tennis, Polo in the Park, the Boat Race, Fulham 10k 
run, firework displays in the Borough’s parks and events that take place at 
Olympia. 

Page 15



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 8 of 31 

5.13 With Public Health funding we participated in the Healthier Catering 
Commitments project and awarded a further 15 premises in the Borough the 
HCC award. This brings the total to 35.  

5.14    Public Health funding enabled us to recruit a Business Advisor to assist with 
workplace engagement and participate in the London Healthy Workplace 
Charter.  

 
5.15    We secured a further Food Standards Agency grant to promote the Food 

Hygiene Rating Scheme. 
 
 
6. PERFORMANCE 
 

 2015-2016 2014-2015 
 

2013-2014 

Percentage of food businesses 
that are Broadly Compliant 

86% 83% 86% 

Food Hygiene Inspections 
 

926 980 773 

Food Standards Inspections 
 

400 433 85 

Samples taken 
 

101 88 142 

Food Safety Service requests 
 

535 508 426 

Health and Safety Inspections 
(programmed & reactive) 
 

7 + 109 15 8 

Food Poisoning notifications 
received 
 

112 94 91 

Food Hygiene Revisits 
 

204 138 175 

Health and Safety Revisits 
 

21 21 34 

Olympia exhibition licence 
approvals 

115 103 77 

Accidents Received 
 

80 172 172 

Accidents Investigated 
 

30 30 34 

Health and Safety Notices 
served 

13 5 6 

Food Safety Notices Served 
 

44 6 23 

Massage and Special 
Treatments Licences Issued 

152 
premises 
licences 

141 premises  
licences  
181 therapists  

358 
 
 

Page 16



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 9 of 31 

214 
therapist 
licenses 

licences   

Animal Health Licences Issued 5 5  
 

5  
 

Explosive Licences Issued 
 

12 12  
 

12  
 

 
 
7. KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 
 
 
7.1     Through better engagement with our clients and businesses we will improve 
  the customer experience and embed a process of continuous improvement. 

7.2        To target interventions that contribute to improving public health. 
  
7.3        To target resources at food premises that are high risk and poor performing.  
  
7.4      To develop a more efficient and effective Service and capture any potential 

efficiency or financial savings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 17



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 10 of 31 

 
PEST CONTROL  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.       SERVICE AIMS 
 
1.1 To provide an effective Pest Control Service that treats a wide range of public 

health pests that helps to prevent the spread of disease including; rats, mice, 
wasps, cockroaches, bed bugs, fleas and pharaoh ants. 

 
 
2.  PEST CONTROL OBJECTIVES 
 
2.1 To meet the Council’s legal obligations to reduce pests in the Borough and to 

keep its land free from pests.  
 
2.2 To treat for pest problems in the Council’s housing stock. The Team has a 

Service Level Agreement with Hammersmith’s Housing Department. 
 
2.3 To increase commercial contracts.  

 
2.4 To support the Council’s strategic objective to deliver a cleaner greener 

Borough through effective pest control treatments. 
 
2.5 To prevent the spread of disease through offering a chargeable Borough wide   

service to residents, local businesses and other Council departments.  
 

2.6       To offer a free pest identification service to residents.  

 

 
 
 
 

Page 18

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=jJRvvAEPeAGbJM&tbnid=haTL6FV4BuEc1M:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.mkpestcontrol.com/&ei=Kgm9U_CfB5C_sQTDqYGICQ&bvm=bv.70138588,d.ZGU&psig=AFQjCNFopfgB4JXi3NpcOJORxZFWMmxVHQ&ust=1404983956054928


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 11 of 31 

3.  KEY ACHIEVEMENTS  
 
3.1 We exceeded our income target. 

  
3.2 We continue to treat small contracts with 93 contracts in total. 
 
3.3 We increased the number of treatments for domestic contracts to residents.  
  
3.4 We held ongoing meetings with Thames Water to improve work carried out in 

and around the Borough’s sewers. 
 
3.5 We carried out 187 proactive pest control treatments in the Council’s parks 

and housing estates to help prevent rodent activity. 
 

3.6 We continue to work with Amey to treat Council properties for Pest Control.  

 
 

4.  PERFORMANCE 
 
 

 
  

PEST TREATED 
 

No of Treatments 
2015-2016 

No of Treatments 
2014-2015 

No of Treatments 
2013-2014 

Mice 
 

 
2,336 2,249 

 
2,263 

Rats 
 

 
580 535 

 
525 

Bed Bugs 
 

 
379 378 

 
377 

Cockroaches 
 

 
231 261 

 
256 

Fleas and Moths 
 

 
79 74 

 
44 

Pharaoh Ants 
 

 
142 198 

 
164 

Wasps 
 

 
69 79 

 
93 

Total 
 

3816 3774 
 

3768 

Page 19



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 12 of 31 

 
 
 
5.        KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 

 
5.1 Through better engagement with our clients and businesses we will improve 

  the customer experience and embed a process of continuous improvement. 
 

5.2 To work towards providing a Service that is cost neutral. 
 

5.3 To support some non-income generating public health activities in the 
Borough.  

 
5.4 To continue to review and stream line procedures. 

 

5.5 To explore ways to continually improve services and ensure that customer 
engagement establishes whether the quality of our services to businesses and 
residents is fit for purpose. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TEAM PERFORMANCE 2015-2016 2014-2015 
 

2013-2014 

Total number of 
Treatments/visits 
 

4328 4,222 3,985 

Total number of Small 
Contract Visits 
 

724 736 656 

Number of Visits to 
Hammersmith Homes 
 

1980 1,942 1,818 

Number of Domestic Visits to 
Residents 
 

1434 1,415 1,336 

Public Health interventions 
in the Borough and parks 

187 190 253 

Total Income  £241,316 £225,979 £206,707 

Income from Services carried 
out for Residents 

£59,544 £64,500 £57,548 

Income from Large Contracts 
 

£142,809 £134,000 £124,711 

Income from Small Contracts 
 

£38,963 £27,000 £27,736 

Page 20



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 13 of 31 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY TEAM 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1. SERVICE AIMS 
 
1.1 To protect public health and the wider environment by regulating and 

addressing land, air and water quality issues. 

1.2 To carry out air quality monitoring and invest in work to improve public 
health. 

1.3 To tackle fuel poverty to improve public health and the efficient use of fuel. 

1.4 To carry out contaminated land assessment work to improve public health. 

1.5 To carry out pollution permitting to improve public health. 

1.6 To protect public health by ensuring safe private drinking water supplies.  

 
 

2.       ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY OBJECTIVES 
 
2.1 To tackle poor air quality through our Air Quality Action Plan. 

2.2 To progress actions that minimise fuel poverty. 

2.3 To address contaminated land through the planning process and through 
our Contaminated Land Strategy. 

2.4 To permit and regulate air pollution producing industries. 

2.5 To ensure private water supplies are safe. 

Page 21

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCM7G4a2F8cYCFYVp2wodXCsPUA&url=http://www.nce.co.uk/ceequal-green-gets-seen/5202646.article&ei=k8GwVY6xDIXT7Qbc1ryABQ&bvm=bv.98476267,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNGTTwJmHfXXcJ8GVQut2Yxjr7UfZg&ust=1437733635184573
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCMnT-9aF8cYCFYdo2wodCyoG6A&url=http://www.brewer-garrett.com/tag/indoor-air-quality/&ei=6cGwVYm7JYfR7QaL1JjADg&bvm=bv.98476267,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNF_hXfzY0DBZYomv7ukADwKnpfmRQ&ust=1437733712953822


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 14 of 31 

 

3.        KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 
  

3.1   We continue to encourage the reduction of fuel poverty within the Borough to 
 improve resident’s health, comfort and housing conditions.  This is achieved 
 through working in partnership with the third sector, health and social services 
 to identify vulnerable residents and to offer them income maximisation, advice
  to help them switch tariffs and manage their fuel bills and, where appropriate, 
 grants to install, repair or improve heating systems and insulation. 

  
3.2   We are one year into a Public Health Funded Fuel Poverty/Healthier Homes 

 Project. This is a two year project that will make referral pathways for 
vulnerable  residents in the Borough with other relevant services such as 
GPs, Hospital  Discharge and 3rd party providers like Citizens Advice.  

 

3.3   We have participated in a Public Health Funded Air Quality Project which 

 makes referral pathways via clinicians and provides vital information to 

 vulnerable residents in the Borough with heart and lung disease. 

 

3.4   We have actively monitored NOx and particulates and produced a progress

  report on the Council’s Air Quality Action Plan which has been approved by 

 DEFRA. 

 

3.5   We have progressed the Mayor’s Air Quality funded projects in the Borough to 

 tackle poor air quality including the greening of Talgarth Road between 

 Shoreditch and Butterwick and the use of a dust suppressant spray at and 

 around the waste transfer stations off of Scrubs Lane. 

 
3.6   We have secured funding through the second round of the Mayor’s Air Quality 

 Fund for a number of projects including a pan-London anti-idling campaign. 

 
3.7   We have responded to all planning consultations and commented on air 

quality  and contaminated land. 

 

3.8   We have carried out 100% of Environmental permitting regulation inspections 

 at dry cleaners, petrol stations, etc. and provided a Statutory Return to 

DEFRA. 

 

3.9   We have responded to all requests for Environmental search reports. 
 

3.10   We have validated and issued 100% of applications received for permitting 

 processes. 

 
 

  

Page 22



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 15 of 31 

4.      PERFORMANCE 

 2015-2016 2014 - 2015 

Planning Consultations (Total) 1755 1855 

Pre-application 123 229 

Full/Outline/Screening/Scoping 1387 1408 

Details to satisfy conditions 245 218 

Environmental Searches 122 117 

Permitted Processes 59 62 

Demolition Notices 21 36 

Healthier Homes:  
Households given advice 

217 N/A 

Healthier Homes:  
Energy and heat saving solutions provided 

199 N/A 

Healthier Homes:  
Enforcement against landlords 

5 N/A 

 

5.        KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 

 
5.1   To actively monitor NOx and particulates across the Borough. 

 

5.2   To work with Public Heath to implement long term, sustainable actions to 
  improve air quality, water quality, fuel poverty and contaminated land issues. 

 
5.3 To work with the Resident lead Air Quality Commission and update the Air 

Quality Action Plan. 

5.4 To progress the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund projects to improve air quality. 

5.5 To continue with fuel poverty work to enable officers and external 
organisations to work together to provide advice and support to vulnerable 
residents to minimise the impact of fuel poverty. 

5.6 Through better engagement with our clients and businesses we will improve 
the customer experience and embed a process of continuous improvement. 

5.7 To respond to 100% of planning consultations within the legal timeframes 
commenting on air quality and contaminated land. 

5.8 To complete 100% of Environmental Permitting Regulation inspections at dry 
cleaners, petrol stations etc and submit a Statutory Return to DEFRA. 

5.9        To respond to requests for environmental searches within 10 working days. 
 

Page 23



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 16 of 31 

5.10 To validate and issue 100% of applications for permitting within the legal 
timeframes. 

5.11  Explore ways to continually improve our services and ensure that customer         
engagement establishes whether the quality of our services to businesses 
and residents is fit for purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 17 of 31 

 

NOISE AND NUISANCE  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1. SERVICE AIMS      

 
1.1 To protect residents from disturbance so that they can enjoy living in their 

homes. Dealing with a range of noise and nuisance complaints from building 
sites, parties, house alarms, car alarms, neighbor noise, air conditioning units 
and smells from commercial premises. 

2. NOISE AND NUISANCE OBJECTIVES      
 

2.1 To visit complainants within two hours during the day, within 60 minutes out of 
hours and to call all complainants within 30 minutes of their initial contact with 
the Service. 
 

2.2 To analyse the history and trends of service requests and undertake work to 
reduce the number of complaints. 

 
3. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS   

 
3.1  57% of complainants received during the day had a call back within 30 

minutes. 
 

3.2  71% of complaints received during the day were visited within 2 hours.  
 
3.3  78% of complaints received out of hours were visited within 1 hour. 
 
3.4  We have further integrated the shared service, by having officers responsible 

for zones across the two boroughs. This allows for better understanding and 
consistency across the Service. 
 

3.5  The Service moved to a non-seasonal rota, to ensure a consistent service 
throughout the year. 

 
 
  

Page 25

http://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=http://www.derby.ac.uk/media/derbyacuk/contentassets/images/ehs/courseimages/Environmental-Noise-Measurement-websize.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.derby.ac.uk/courses/postgraduate/instituteofacousticscertificateofcompetenceinenvironmentalnoisemeasurement/&h=298&w=448&tbnid=UFbxwJpsDO02FM:&zoom=1&docid=Zc4VmzFA1WOVdM&ei=E7yTVa6QMPDG7Aanv4aIAw&tbm=isch&ved=0CCUQMyghMCE4yAE
http://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=http://www.noisecontrol.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/noise11.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.noisecontrol.com/the-common-causes-of-noise-pollution/&h=342&w=339&tbnid=DrGvRB5SnT4jmM:&zoom=1&docid=xOoVfowm1OaIVM&ei=QbuTVeb3JNKP7Aa2u7XQAw&tbm=isch&ved=0CEMQMygZMBk


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 18 of 31 

4.         PERFORMANCE  
 

 
 
 

5.   PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 
 

5.1         A more proactive enforcement regime. 

  5.2        To improve the response times from the previous year. 
 

5.3      All construction sites to be served with a Section 60 Control of Pollution Act 
Notice to allow residents reasonable enjoyment of their property. 

 
5.4     To use preventative measures to control the impact of construction sites e.g. 

with regard to hours of work, plant and machinery and methods of working. 
 

5.5      To continue to provide Planning with recommended conditions to minimize 
the impact of noise and other disruption to neighboring residents.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 2015-2016 2014-2015 
 

2013-2014 

Number of Nuisance Calls  
During Office Hours 

2543 2229 3070 

Number of Non-nuisance Service 
Requests During Office Hours  

2082 
 

2190 N/A 

Number of Nuisance Calls Out of Hours  4163 3527 4897 

Number of Calls Combined 8788 7946 7967 

Number of Construction Complaints 935 1045 1228 

Number of Section 80 Notices 102 370 147 

Number of Section 60 Notices 484 481 398 

Number of Planning Applications 
Received 

1540 1637 1046 

Number of Licensing Applications 
Received 

477 634 71 

Page 26



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 19 of 31 

 
PRIVATE HOUSING 

 
 
 
 

 

 

1. SERVICE AIM 
 

1.1 To improve public health by raising and maintaining good housing standards 
in the private rented sector and to protect vulnerable tenants.  

 
 

2.        PRIVATE HOUSING OBJECTIVES 
 

2.1   To improve housing conditions in the private rented sector by focusing on high 
risk properties and through targeted and intelligence led interventions. 

  
2.2  To Identify and regulate Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) that require 

licensing.  
 

2.3  To target poor performing landlords. 
 
2.4  To increase the supply of affordable housing by reducing long term vacant   

properties and to bring them back into use.  
 

2.5    To reduce the need for temporary accommodation through enforcement and 
grant aided works.  

 
  
 

Page 27

http://www.24dash.com/news/housing/2012-05-03-sale-of-kensington-and-chelsea-flats-to-fund-8m-social-housing-improvements


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 20 of 31 

3. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS  
 

3.1 We have licensed mandatory HMOs and set conditions to protect residents 
from fire, excess cold, damp and overcrowding. 

 
3.2 We have increased our enforcement to address the rise in housing hazards 

and to improve standards in the private rented sector. 
 
3.3 We have targeted our resources at high risk cases focusing on fire safety, 
  inadequate heating, damp, mould and falls. 

3.4 We have successfully prosecuted landlords for failure to licence HMOs and to 
comply with HMO Management regulations.  In all cases the Council were 
awarded full costs and landlords were appropriately fined.  

3.5 We successfully won a grant of £91,000 to tackle rogue landlords; we have 
proactively inspected over 500 properties. 

3.6 We have added two additional enforcement officers to the Team to tackle 
poor standards. 

3.7 We have reviewed how we risk assess complaints and improvements are 
 being considered which will lead to a better use of our resources. 

3.8 We have continued to work with our colleagues to address fuel poverty, 
 hoarding and poor housing conditions for vulnerable residents including the 
 elderly and young children. 
 
3.9 We continue to share best practice with West London local authorities around 
 enforcement and working with landlords.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 28



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 21 of 31 

 
4.         PERFORMANCE 

 
 
5. KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 

 
5.1 To carry out public Consultation on improving the private rented sector 

through the potential introduction of non-mandatory licensing, revised HMO 
standards and a landlord’s charter. 

5.2 To target interventions that contributes to improving public health.  

5.3 To target resources towards high risk HMOs and poor performing landlords.  

5.4 To continuously improve our Service to landlords and residents.  

5.5 To improve service user experience through officer engagement and other 
  media such as the website. 

5.6 To make full use of legislation to secure improvements. 

5.7 To target our interventions and projects to address the following hazards; fire, 
damp, mould, excess cold, falls and entry by intruders. 

 
5.8 To continue to review and update information available to landlords.  
 
5.9 To issue HMO licences within our target response time. 
 
5.10 To inspect 40 high risk HMOs to ensure the property is free from high risk 

Category 1 hazards. 
 
5.11   Continue to return vacant private sector dwellings back into occupation 

through successful interventions. 

  

 2015-2016 2014-2015 
 

2013-2014 

Number of Housing Complaints   
 

835 903 618 

Number of Properties Licensed 
 

23 n/a 43 

Number of Enforcement Notices Served 
 (including management letter) 

234 94 108 

Number of Cases Where Works Were 
Undertaken in the Default of the Owner  

1 4 11 

Number of Prosecutions 
 

2 3 1 

Number of Long Term Empty Properties 
Brought Back into Use 

9  13 22 

Page 29



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 22 of 31 

 
LICENSING  

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. SERVICE AIMS  
             
1.1 To discharge our function as a Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 

2003 by promoting the four licensing objectives and using the full range of 
enforcement options/sanctions to increase the level of compliance within 
licensed premises across the Borough.  

 
1.2 To issue and enforce other types of miscellaneous licences required under 

statute.   
 

1.3 To use complaints, crime and other data to develop an accurate picture of key 
licensing issues across the Borough using tactical plans to address problems. 

 
1.4 To empower key partners/stakeholders to use the powers available to them 

under the Licensing Act 2003 and associated legislation. 
 

1.5 To work in partnership to reduce the negative effect of alcohol on public 
health, within the Borough. 
 

2. LICENSING TEAM OBJECTIVES  
 
2.1 To process licensing applications and provide an excellent service. 

 
2.2 To reduce the likelihood of crime on licensed premises. 

 
2.3 To adopt a systematic approach to identify problems and issues in licensed 

premises and improve intelligence through accurate information gathering. 
 

2.4 To increase clarity amongst members of the community about the different 
functions of Responsible Authorities. 
 

Page 30

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http://joesterloriagroup.com/licensing101/&ei=dWGWVcOfLIeC7gbz2I7gAg&bvm=bv.96952980,d.ZGU&psig=AFQjCNHzYG4UbFpzMYH-QJknHisR55OWMg&ust=1436004859483015
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http://fashionindustrylaw.com/tag/licensees/&ei=zGGWVayFOMve7Aa5j7_gAw&bvm=bv.96952980,d.ZGU&psig=AFQjCNEzD17Il2EU0OQgwo1NiXse-9MSAg&ust=1436005191752266


 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 23 of 31 

2.5 To use legislation and readily available, up-to-date guidance to ensure that we 
have knowledgeable and skilled officers working in accordance with best 
practice. 
 

2.6 To use early interventions for minor offences to help bring about positive 
outcomes for the community by promoting the four licensing objectives. 
 

2.7 To target those licensed premises that choose to breach their licence 
conditions and fail to uphold the licensing objectives. 
 

2.8 Ensuring that all licensing fees due are collected within the relevant 
timescales. 
 

3.        KEY ACHIEVEMENTS  
 

3.1 On 1st April 2016 there were 869 Premises Licenses and 14 Club Premises 
Certificates. There were 141 premises licensed for Massage and Special 
Treatment and 187 registered therapists.  

 
3.2 In 2015/2016 the Team dealt with 495 temporary event notices, 284 personal 

licences and 525 premises licence applications and notifications. 
 
3.3. In 2015/16 21 licences were suspended and 13 remain suspended.  3 of 

these premises are no longer operating and the remaining 10 will be 
monitored. 

 
3.4 We implemented a licensing pre-application advice service to support local 

businesses. 
 

4.     PERFORMANCE 
 

 2015-2016 2014 -2015 

76% of New Licence Applications were 
Completed within Agreed Service Standards 

62 57 

89% of Variations for a Licence/Club Premise 
Certificate were Completed 

32 26 

100% of Minor Variation Applications were 
completed on time 

27 29 

100% of Transfers and Interim Authorities 
were Completed on Time 

82 70 

Number of Licence Reviews  
 

2 6 

Number of Notification of Change of Name 
and/or Address  

154 98 

98% of Personal Licence Applications were 
Completed on Time  

222 205 

% of High Risk Premises Inspected 97% 98%  
 

 

Page 31



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 24 of 31 

 
 
5.        KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 

  
5.1  Through better engagement with our clients and businesses we will improve 
  the customer experience and embed a process of continuous improvement. 

5.2 To carry out functions as required under the Licensing Act 2003 and manage 
the processing of applications for premises licences.  
 

5.3 To carry out functions under the Gambling Act 2005 and manage the 
processing of applications for premises licences. 
 

5.4 To carry out inspections at all high risk premises every 12 months and new 
premises identified and risk rated. 
 

5.5 To check licence conditions and to investigate any complaints.   
 

5.6 To risk rate all gambling premises and inspect all those rated as high risk. 
 

5.7 To carry out an initiative to identify illegal gaming machines. 
 

5.8 To identify operators who have not paid their Licensing Act 2003 annual fee 
by the due date and take the appropriate action. 
 

5.9 To conduct six multi agency inspections with agency partners, i.e. Police, 
Gambling Commission, Security Industry Authority, Customs, Immigration, 
Trading Standards, and Environmental Health. The Multi Agency Operations 
will be for; late night inspections, underage alcohol sales, licence conditions 
check and gambling premises inspections.  

 
5.10 To carry out a minimum of two test purchases on premises suspected of sales 

of alcohol outside their permitted hours. 
 

5.11 Partnership working with Public Health, the Substance Misuse Team and the 
Offender Care Team to facilitate A&E data sharing. 
 

5.12 To develop an effective on-line licence application system. 
 

5.13 To increase partnership working with the Metropolitan Police and attend crime 
and disorder Partnership Meetings, as required. 
 

5.14 To review the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  This involves a 12 
week consultation period with the licensed trade, residents and other 
interested parties.  The Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 – 2021 will be put 
before the Full Council. 

 
5.15 To explore ways to continually improve our services and ensure that customer 

engagement establishes whether the quality of our services to businesses 
and residents is fit for purpose.  

Page 32



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 25 of 31 

 

 
TRADING STANDARDS  

 
 

       

 
1. SERVICE AIMS  

1.1 To help local businesses to thrive (prosperity) and to ensure that consumer 
and business interests are safeguarded (protection). 

 
2. TRADING STANDARDS TEAM OBJECTIVES 

2.1 To promote the Borough as a good place to do business.  

2.2 To achieve compliant businesses, using ‘Better Regulation’ principles to 
reduce the burden on businesses. 

2.3 To use a range of sanctions to tackle non-compliant businesses. 

2.4 To provide consumer advice in partnership with Citizens Advice Consumer 
Helpline and business advice with key stakeholders and partners. 

2.5 To protect children from harm through the enforcement of underage sales of 
age restricted goods. 

2.6 To protect the elderly and vulnerable from unscrupulous traders. 

2.7 To contribute towards public health through alcohol, product safety and 
tobacco control work activities. 

2.8 To tackle rogue traders, and those selling fake and unsafe goods. 

2.9  To provide an excellent service. 

 
 
 
  

Page 33



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 26 of 31 

3. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 

3.1 We participated in National Consumer Week, the annual consumer education 
and awareness event organised by the Chartered Trading Standards Institute.  
The theme was “Know your New Rights”.  Officers provided advice and 
information to raise awareness on the new Consumer Rights Act which came 
into force on 1st October 2015, and to raise awareness about the redress 
schemes for Letting Agency and Property Management work to support local 
tenants.   

3.2 We participated in National Scams Month, an annual consumer campaign 
which aims to stop people being rushed into hasty decisions by scammers 
and to end victims being hushed into silence by a sense of shame, 
foolhardiness, or weary acceptance.  Officer made contact with residents who 
had been a victim of Mass Marketing Scams.  This is an on-going commitment 
to intervene where residents have been identified as victims of scams by 
providing advice and directing residents to available support to stop them 
sending money to fraudsters.   

3.3 We continue to work with our partners to share intelligence on rogue 
businesses, and illegal money lenders and raise awareness on consumer 
rights within our communities. Our partners include the Metropolitan Police, 
HMRC, National Illegal Money Lending Team, Citizens Advice, Credit Union, 
Community Safety, Age UK, the Licensing Team, Housing and other Council 
departments.  

3.4 Trading Standards sits on the Safeguarding Adults Executive Board to work 
collaboratively with colleagues in Adult Social Care, Public Health, the Police, 
the London Fire Brigade and other organisations represented on the board to 
address the issue of financial exploitation of vulnerable adults. Work has been 
done to raise awareness in this area and to improve the sharing of information 
about those residents who may be at risk.  

3.5 We carried out compliance checks on Challenge 21/25 schemes in licensed 
premises using 18 to 20 year old volunteers.  60% of the businesses visited 
failed to comply with their age verification policies. These businesses have 
been notified of the sales. 

3.6 We carry out enforcement of illegal street trading where counterfeit goods are 
sold near Chelsea football stadium on match days. This has resulted in a 
reduction in the amount of illegal goods being sold. 

3.7 In 2015/16, we started 32 investigations and completed 26 with the remainder 
still being investigated.  The concluded investigations resulted in either a 
formal warning, Simple Caution, licence review, voluntary licence variation to 
add/amend conditions, monetary penalty notice or successful legal 
proceedings. The investigations related to: 

   Possession of illegal tobacco; 

 Underage sales of age restricted products; 

 Supply of counterfeit goods; 

 Supply of unsafe consumer goods; 

Page 34



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 27 of 31 

 Possession of non-duty paid alcohol; 

 Non-membership of a recognised property redress scheme; 

 Sale of vehicles with false odometer readings. 

 Misdesribed goods and services;  

 Fraud act offences. 

3.8 Over 1,500 non-compliant items were seized ranging from non-duty paid 
tobacco, incorrectly labelled tobacco, counterfeit football shirts, and unsafe 
electrical goods.   

3.9 A total of £18,155 was awarded in fines, costs and victim surcharges, with 
one 18 months imprisonment for falsifying the odometer on vehicles and 
conspiracy to defraud. 

3.10 Two letting agents were identified as not having signed up to be a member 
of a recognised redress scheme, as required by law. Both premises have 
been sent a Notice of Intent and officers are currently liaising with both 
businesses. 

3.11 We prosecuted a local market trader who was found to be selling counterfeit 
goods and pleaded guilty to seven charges. He was ordered to pay a fine, 
victim surcharge and full prosecution costs totalling £3,935.   

3.12 We concluded a three-year investigation following complaints from the public 
where two rogue car salesmen were found guilty of selling “clocked” second 
hand cars by reducing the mileage.  They were given 18 months sentences 
and admitted conspiracy to defraud and to further money laundering 
charges. They advertised on Auto trader and Gumtree and used false names 
and telephone numbers to hide their identities and the cars were sold with 
false MOTS and service histories, and in some cases, the mileage had been 
reduced by as much as 100,000 miles. 

3.13 We used “Wagtail” dogs who can identify concealed tobacco and found a 
local retailer in possession of 101 packets of cigarettes and rolling tobacco 
located in a tank above the toilet at the rear of the shop. None of the tobacco 
products contained the prescribed health warnings.  This investigation 
resulted in legal proceedings and a Court fine with full prosecution costs and 
a victim surcharge were recovered.  The total fines and costs were £4,440. 

3.14 A local letting agency was found to be advertising properties for rent that 
were not under their control.  This investigation was raised by a landlord and 
during the investigation, we discovered two further properties.  The 
Company admitted four charges of unfair trading, and were ordered to pay 
£8,800 in fines and costs. 

3.15 We participated in 10 national and local partnership days including Operation 
Liberal, and Operation Bing Wing.  The work was conducted in partnership 
with the Licensing Team, Community Safety, the Metropolitan Police, Police 
Cadets, HMRC, Trade Mark representatives and other experts. The activities 
included: 

 Visits to off licences checking for non-duty paid alcohol (tax 
avoidance), counterfeit alcohol, counterfeit/illegal tobacco and shisha; 

Page 35



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 28 of 31 

 Underage test purchasing of alcohol, tobacco, knives, and fireworks; 

 Visits at the local markets checking for counterfeit and unsafe goods; 

 Door to door visits to hotspot areas giving advice to residents on 
doorstep crime and bogus callers. 

3.16 We launched the “Real Deal” campaign at North End Road market which 
seeks to support market traders by providing advice and information to help 
improve the standards and safety of products being sold and to ensure that 
all traders are operating on a level playing field.  

3.17 We participated in a London-wide clampdown on illicit skin lightening 
products, and a number of shops were raided to remove harmful products 
containing Mercury and Hydroquinone, which are banned from skin 
lightening cosmetics.  They have been found to cause damage to the liver 
and can increase the risk of skin cancer. Mercury can severely affect organs 
such as the kidney, liver and the brain. 539 products were seized from four 
businesses in the Borough. Following this operation, further investigations 
and tests are ongoing. 

3.18 We led a London-wide project on Second Hand Electrical products funded 
by the Department of Business, Innovation and Skills.  Visits were conducted 
with an electrical safety expert, and a total of 64 second hand electrical 
goods retailers were visited across 15 London authorities. Three retailers 
were based in the Borough and two of them were found to have non-
compliant second hand electrical goods. The safety issues identified 
included; incorrect plugs, which did not fit the gauge and two pin plugs, 
which did not comply with the British safety standard.  Across the 15 
authorities, 117 items were tested, and 20 were found to be non- compliant 
and unsafe.  

3.19 We attended the Pan London Illegal Tobacco Steering Group and the 
West/North West London Illegal Tobacco Network to work collaboratively 
with other London Boroughs to tackle the sale and supply of illegal tobacco. 

3.20 We received funding from Public Health to conduct an illegal tobacco survey 
in seven identified hotspot locations in the Borough.   This survey has been 
conducted in many London Boroughs (in South East London and the North 
East/Central regions) to improve intelligence about where and how illegal 
tobacco is supplied. The survey results will enable follow up work to be 
carried out to reduce the affordability and availability of illegal tobacco 
products in the Borough and is linked to the following priorities outlined in the 
Tackling Tobacco and Smoking 2015-2025 Strategic Plan and the 2015-
2025 Public Health Strategy. 

 Reducing smoking – reducing potential tobacco health harm. 
 Making tobacco less affordable. 
 Effective regulation of tobacco products. 
 Effective communications for tobacco control. 

3.21 We participated in Operation Henry 2, which is a national coordinated project 
funded by the Department of Health. Officers carried out spot checks at eight 
shops in the Borough with the assistance of specialised tobacco detecting 
sniffer dogs. Three premises were found to have illegal tobacco, which 

Page 36



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 29 of 31 

resulted in the seizure of cigarettes, shisha, and rolling tobacco which were 
either counterfeit, had inadequate or incorrect warning labels that did not 
comply with the law or had been smuggled to avoid paying tax duty. The 
seized tobacco had a retail value of approximately £1,000.  

3.22 We participated in one of the largest pan-London raids at a warehouse 
where more than 20,000 potentially unsafe and fake electrical goods such as 
laptop chargers, adapters, Christmas lights, PC tablets, sat navs, and other 
electrical products were seized. The raid was part of a national project 
funded by National Trading Standards aimed at combating the sale of 
dangerous imports being sold in the UK, many of which do not meet 
stringent EU safety standards. 22 trading standards officers from a host of 
London local authorities as well as the Metropolitan Police, Her Majesty’s 
Revenue & Customs (HMRC) and immigration departments participated in 
the raid. More than 30 pallets of potentially dangerous products, which had 
been imported from China and other countries outside of the European 
Union, were seized. The directors of the Company are now subject to a 
criminal investigation.  

3.23 We have secured funding to provide a Data Quality Service to London 
Trading Standards, which involves conducting audit and monitoring data 
placed on the Trading Standards National Intelligence Database in London.  
The data is used for gathering intelligence and investigation purposes.   

3.24 Our staff have retained their Trading Standards Practitioner status by 
satisfying the criteria for their Continuous Personal Professional 
Development (CPPD). 

 

4.    PERFORMANCE 

 

 2014-2015 2015-2016 

Number of Referrals Received for Action via the  
Citizen Advice Consumer Helpline 

364 432 

Number of Notifications Received for Information via the 
Citizen Advice Consumer Helpline  

2298 1670 

Number of Service Requests Received directly from a 
Business in the Borough 

30 60 

Number of Service Requests Received in connection with 
Home Authority and/or Primary Authority Businesses 

49 9 

% 1st Responses made within Agreed Service Standards 99% 98% 

Number of Licensing Act 2003 Applications  
Received for Consultation 

70 47 

Number of Criminal Investigations Started 37 32 

Number of Criminal investigations Completed 2 26 

Number of Warning Letters  6 9 

Number of Investigations Resulting in a Simple Caution  7 11 

Page 37



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 30 of 31 

Number of Investigations Pending Legal Proceedings  3 2 

Number of Investigations Resulting in Prosecution  4 4 

Number of Investigations Resulting in a Licensing Review 
or Voluntary Variation to add/amend Conditions 

2 4 

% High Risk Premises Visited 100% 100% 

Number of Tobacco Related Visits  10 33 

Number of Underage Sales attempts for Alcohol, Knives 
and Tobacco, and Challenge 21/25 

103 80 

Number of Joint Action Partnership Days  14 10 

Number of Chelsea Match day Enforcement Visits  10 5 

 

5. KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017   

Preventative 

5.1 Through better engagement with our clients and businesses, we will improve 
the customer experience and embed a process of continuous improvement. 

5.2 We will deal with all service requests and referrals from Citizens Advice 
Consumer Helpline in accordance with the Team’s service standards. 

5.3 We will attend a minimum of three resident events aimed at raising awareness 
of current consumer issues.  Provide education to residents on the types of 
crimes that are being carried out. Where concerns have been identified, we 
will look at what safeguarding measures can be put in place in partnership 
with internal teams and external agencies 

5.4 We will work with colleagues in Citizens Advice to promote National 
Consumer Week, which aims to raise consumer awareness about Consumer 
Protection issues. 

5.5 We will attend a minimum of two events to provide business advice and 
education, to help local businesses to comply with their legal obligations and 
create a level playing field. 

5.6 We will maintain Primary Authority relationships with local businesses by 
providing robust and reliable regulatory advice, to support business growth. All 
Primary Authority companies will be visited at least twice per year. 

5.7 We will carry out Scams Awareness work to raise awareness and identify 
vulnerable groups in conjunction with partner agencies.  

5.8 We will participate in Operation Liberal (National Event) in partnership with the 
Police to target rogue traders and doorstep crime incidents. 

5.9 We will improve the use of intelligence from both internal and external sources 
to enable officers to focus on commercial activities that pose the highest risk 
and cause the largest detriment to consumers and businesses.  

  

Page 38



 
LBHF Annual Report Environmental Health Service Group 2015-2016 
   Page 31 of 31 

Enforcement  

5.10 We will promote and audit the Real Deal initiative at local markets to check 
the level of compliance in relation to unsafe and counterfeit goods. 

5.11 We will carry out a minimum of 80 underage sales visits and address any non-
compliance. 

5.12 We will carry out a minimum of 20 tobacco related visits to ensure compliance 
with legislation covering the sale of tobacco including e-cigarettes, tobacco 
displays, tobacco labeling and tobacco advertising.  

5.13 We will aim to detect and disrupt sales of illegal and counterfeit tobacco. 

5.14 We will inspect 100% of all high-risk premises. 

5.15 We will identify and address non-compliant and unfair business practices in 
the lettings sector. This will include requirements in relation to; Energy 
Performance Certification; Lettings Agency Redress Scheme; Estate Agency 
Redress Scheme and Letting Agents display of fees. 

5.16 We will review all incoming service requests to identify any potential financial 
investigations under the Proceeds of Crime Act. 

5.17 We will carry out two product safety projects, to protect consumers from harm, 
which may include participation in regional and sub-regional product safety 
projects. 

5.18 We will continue enforcement to combat illegal street trading and the selling of 
counterfeit goods at Chelsea football fixtures. 

 
Service Improvement and Sustainability  

5.19 We will use the media and other communication channels to raise awareness 
about the work of the Service and provide improved information for residents 
and businesses. 

5.20 We will maintain the website information and update it as necessary. 

5.21 We will maintain competency and Continuous Personal Professional 
Development (CPPD) to achieve/maintain Trading Standards Practitioner 
(TSP) status. 

5.22 We will explore ways to continually improve our services and ensure that 
customer engagement establishes whether the quality of our services to 
businesses and residents is fit for purpose. 

5.23 We will continue to fulfil contractual arrangements with London Trading 
Standards by monitoring the quality of enforcement data in London, which is 
used for gathering intelligence and investigation purposes. 

 

 
 
 

Page 39



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

  

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
RESIDENTS’ SERVICES POLICY & 

ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

28 JUNE 2016 

 

 

NOISE NUISANCE PREVENTION 

 

Report of the Director for Environmental Health 

 

Open Report 

 

 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 

 

Key Decision: No 

 

Wards Affected: All 

 

Accountable Director: Nicholas Austin 

 

Report Author: Richard Buckley, Bi-
borough Head of Environmental Health 
(Residential) 

 

Contact Details: 

Tel: 020 8753 3971 

E-mail: Richard.buckley@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1. This report updates the Committee on the operational service arrangements 
of the Noise and Nuisance team in tackling anti-social behaviour. In addition it 
sets out the volume and type of service requests received from residents and 
the performance of the team for the year April 2015 to March 2016. 

1.2. The report also seeks the views of the Committee on what the Council’s 
approach should be to the specific aspect of busking and public entertainment 
that can enhance the vibrancy of the local environment but can also lead to 
complaint. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1. It is recommended that the Committee notes the content of the report and 
offers its views on the direction the Council should take with respect to its 
policy on busking and public entertainment. 

 

3. TACKLING NOISE AND NUISANCE 

 

Reactive Response Service 

3.1. The Noise & Nuisance team sits within Environmental Health and is staffed by 
professional officers with qualifications in acoustics and enforcement.  

3.2. Multiple teams of officers operate 365 days a year, day and night (till 5am 
Friday to Monday and till 3am Tuesday to Thursday), providing an essential 
response service to residents suffering noise nuisance from loud music, 
construction, alarms, refrigeration and mechanical plant, barking dogs etc and 
other nuisances such as dust and smoke from bonfires. 

3.3. Covert officers are available to visit residents in their homes and to take action 
to abate the nuisance there and then. The quicker the officer gets to the 
resident’s home the more likely they are to witness the nuisance (required by 
law) and remedy the problem. This is achieved either informally by speaking 
to all parties, or by serving a legal notice setting out requirements to abate the 
nuisance or by taking enforcement action for a breach of a legal notice: such 
as confiscation, fixed penalty notice or instigation of criminal proceedings. 

3.4. There are two primary pieces of legislation that govern the service: 
Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1990 and the Control of Pollution Act 
(COPA) 1974. There is no legal requirement to provide an out of hour’s 
service but the Council has a statutory duty to investigate complaints and like 
many London boroughs this is achieved through the provision of a response 
service at times when it is needed. 

3.5. The service receives between 6,000 and 8,000 requests for help in 
Hammersmith & Fulham every year. Noise in particular has a significant 

Page 41



 

 

impact on people’s lives, living in a densely populated borough means that it 
can happen to anyone. 

Shared Service 

3.6. In April 2014, the Noise & Nuisance Service in Hammersmith & Fulham 
amalgamated with its neighbour the Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea. 
The sharing of services allowed for the operational hours to residents to be 
extended with an increase in the numbers of officers available to respond. In 
turn this enables better case management, a sharing of expertise across the 
boroughs, and the delivery of financial savings. 

3.7. In Hammersmith & Fulham the hours were extended at weekends allowing a 
9am start (previously midday) and a 7:30am start during the week (previously 
8am).  

3.8. As part of the amalgamation the day to day operational model used by RBKC, 
whereby Area Senior Officers are given responsibility to proactively manage 
set areas and Noise & Nuisance Officers designated individual zones, was 
adopted in Hammersmith & Fulham. In LBHF there are 5 zones based on 
service demand and the number of available officers. 

3.9. The move towards designated officers and to a more proactive case handling 
approach allows the further improvement of the service for residents by 
enabling better case resolution.  In addition, complex cases such as major 
developments can now be dealt with via a single point of contact and benefit 
from a level of continuity that was previously unavailable. 

Major Developments 

3.10. Within the Borough there are a number of larger developments such as Earls 
Court, Tideway Tunnel, Crossrail and HS2 that are more complex and 
potentially have significant impacts from construction noise and vibration.  
Dedicated officers are assigned on a day to day basis with the wider team 
able to respond 7 days a week. 

3.11. In the case of Earls Court and Tideway Tunnel funding from the developer is 
available to undertake environmental monitoring. At Earls Court a number of 
noise and vibration monitors are on site to provide objective data and confirm 
that the developers are operating to agreed parameters set by Environmental 
health; this will be a requirement for the Tideway Tunnel too. 

Planning process 

3.12. The team plays a vital legal role in the planning process providing consultative 
feedback on planning applications principally around the potential impact of 
noise either from or to the development.  

3.13. Officers review ‘expert’ reports from acoustic consultants, architects and 
engineers. The intention is to design out any negative impact through the 
implementation of acoustic measures. Over the last five years the 
unprecedented level of development has placed considerable demand on 
officer time. 

3.14. The number of planning applications continues to remain high.  

 

Page 42



 

 

 

Licensing 

3.15. The team is the legal ‘Responsible Authority’ for licensing pubs, clubs and 
other premises in relation to noise and public nuisance. All applications 
including Temporary Event Notices (TEN) are reviewed by officers and 
conditions applied as appropriate.  

3.16. Conditions are imposed to proactively design out and/or mitigate the potential 
negative impact on residents of entertainment and include physical measures 
such as noise limits and management requirements. 

3.17. In recent years the team has seen an increased demand in the number of 
applications; especially TENS that require officer feedback and attendance at 
Committee. 

3.18. The team meets with key stakeholders including the Police on a routine basis 
to proactively discuss solutions for problem premises, and premises that may 
pose potential future problems, to safeguard the public. 

Call Volumes 

3.19. Call volumes are steady throughout the week but notably increase over the 
course of the weekend. During this period additional teams of officers are 
fielded with up to four teams (eight officers) working across both boroughs on 
a Saturday night/Sunday morning.  

3.20. Table 1, reports on a number of performance measures for the year April 
2015 to March 2016 comparing them against the same period for the previous 
year. 

3.21. The number of calls received during the day has increased by 14% in the last 
year. Analysis of the nuisance type shows that this is in part due to an 
increase in complaints regarding noise from construction sites which 
continues to rise year on year. This increase is reflected in the large number 
of planning applications over the last few years. 

3.22. The majority of construction complaints are about noisy works outside the 
generally permitted hours. The extension of the service operational hours in 
2014 during the day at weekend’s means that more calls are being received 
and responded to earlier. 

3.23. In response to this particular issue the number of legal notices (S60s) that 
have been served by officers on developers/contractors to control the impact 
has also increased markedly. In addition, the technical specifications on the 
legal notices are now more detailed in terms of defining ‘best practicable 
means’ around quieter construction methods. At some larger sites quiet 
periods during high impact works (e.g. concrete breaking) have been 
introduced during the day and weekend to further protect residents and 
nearby businesses. 

3.24. The number of calls received at night is higher (28%) this year compared to 
last. It is too early to establish if this is a continuing trend or whether it is an 
anomaly. There is a 32% increase in complaints about music which is typically 
the most common complaint at night.  

Page 43



 

 

3.25. In response the number of legal notices (S80s) has also increased. The legal 
notice place requirements on the occupier to stop the nuisance. 

Call volumes by hour 

3.26. Table 2 displays the hourly demand for the service throughout the course of 
the night by month for the year April 2015 to March 2016. 

3.27. The ‘night shift’ is notionally set at 19:30 to 05:00. Demand for the service 
builds up over the course of the evening peaking around midnight and then 
dropping off at a uniform rate till when the service closes. The data after 05:00 
is not accurate as no calls are taken after this hour until the service 
commences again at 7:30.   

3.28. Additional teams work at weekends over the course of the summer but as can 
be seen from Table 2 there is a consistent number of complaints regardless of 
the month. 

Performance 

3.29. The performance of the team can be judged by a number of parameters 
including an understanding of response times versus service demand. 

3.30. There is a performance measure that gives an indication of how long it takes 
to respond: average time to visit during the night (target <1 hour). 
Performance can be affected by call volumes, case duration, traffic and 
geography (proximity to where officer is located at time of call). Call response 
times on average remain well within target (see Table 1). 

3.31. In addition, many other parameters are recorded including the number of legal 
notices served and other enforcement actions taken. The majority of cases 
(90%) are resolved informally through speaking to all parties at the time of 
occurrence. 

3.32. It is important to note that the shared arrangement with Kensington & Chelsea 
has allowed both Boroughs to benefit from officer resources being flexibly and 
pragmatically deployed between Boroughs to adapt to fluctuations in demand.  

 

 

  

Page 44



 

 

Table 1 

Descriptor April 2015 to 
March 2016 

April 2014 to 
March 2015 

% Variance 

No. of ‘Noise on Now’ calls 07:30 to 
19:30 

2,543 2,229 +14.1 

No. of ‘Noise on Now’ calls 19:30 to 
05:00 

4,163 3,257 +27.8 

No. of service requests not requiring 
immediate response 

2,082 2,190 -26.4 

    

Average visit response time Night: 
19:30 to 05:00 (target <1 hours) 

Achieved Achieved  

    

%. of construction complaints 15.5 13.6 +13.9 

%. of licensed Premises complaints 2.5 2.5 0 

%. of domestic music complaints 39.1 29.5 +32.5 

%. of domestic other complaints 16.5 15.1 +9.3 

% of other type of complaints 26.4 39.2 -32.7 

    

No. of S80 notices served 102 89 +14.6 

No. of S60 notices served 484 481 +0.62 

    

No of planning apps consulted/ 
conditioned 

1,540 1,637 -5.9 

No of Licensing applications 
consulted/conditioned 

477 634 -24.8 

 

  

Page 45



 

 

Table 2: Hourly service demand 

 

  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

17-18hrs 18-19hrs 19-20hrs 20-21hrs 21-22hrs 22-23hrs 23-00hrs 00-01hrs 01-02hrs 02-03hrs 03-04hrs 04-05hrs 05-06hrs

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ca
lls

 

Time 

Calls by hour (night) April 2015-March 2016 

Apr count

May count

Jun count

Jul count

Aug count

Sept count

Oct count

Nov count

Dec count

Jan count

Feb count

Mar count

P
age 46



 

 

 

 

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

 

Busking and street entertainment 

 

4.1. The Council is currently considering what its policy on busking and street 
entertainment should be within the Borough. The Council wishes to strike the 
right balance of promoting a vibrant street culture whilst protecting residents 
from nuisance and illegal activities. 

4.2. Street entertainment is viewed as an important part of the musical and cultural 
vibrancy of the borough, providing a means for new talent to be discovered, 
while adding character to the area. This in turn supports the creative and 
cultural industries. 

4.3. The practice of Busking and Street Entertaining in a public space is not 
against the law. However these activities can become a component part of 
other offences, such as noise nuisance, illegal street-trading and obstructing 
the highway etc. 

4.4. The Council can take enforcement action under the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 and the Control of Pollution Act 1974 for noise nuisance but this 
requires a high burden of proof and is labour and resource intensive. 

4.5. Under the Anti-Social Crime and Policing Act 2014 the Council can issue 
Community Protection Notices on individuals, which if breached are 
enforceable through the service of a Fixed Penalty Notice or the instigation of 
criminal proceedings 

4.6. In addition, the Council can introduce a Public Spaces Protection Orders 
(PSPO’s) to control anti-social behaviour in certain areas again through the 
service of a Fixed Penalty Notice or the instigation of criminal proceedings 

4.7. In the year April 2015 to March 2016 the Noise & Nuisance team received just 
over 100 complaints about busking/street performers. The majority of these 
were located outside Shepherd’s Bush station with just over 10 received in 
Hammersmith Broadway and a smaller number in Fulham Broadway. 

4.8. Reports from Community Safety Unit and CCTV for the period 5th April the 
2016 to May 5th 2016 in Hammersmith Broadway report 14 occurrences of 
noisy busking. The Operations Manager from Hammersmith London recently 
met with a representative from Guide Dogs for the Blind in March 2016 
following complaints that the buskers in operation outside the Swan PH were 
obstructing the footway and also making it difficult for those with sensory 
impairments to hear the traffic signals at the pedestrian crossing.  

4.9. Recently, the Council had cause to introduce a Public Spaces Protection 
Order outside Shepherds Bush underground station in response to escalating 
complaints from local residents and users of the station about excessive 
amplified noise from busking. The action was deemed necessary in this 
specific situation owing to the excessive negative impact and is not the norm. 

Page 47



 

 

 

5. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 

5.1. There are a number of options available to the Council to control such 
activities. Some local authorities such as London Borough of Camden have a 
licensing regime, whilst others such as Cambridgeshire, Oxford and Bath 
have produced buskers’ code of practice that all entertainers need to sign up 
to. The Greater London Authority has also created the BuskinLondon Team 
who have produced a code of practice specific to London to which local 
authorities can sign up. 

Option 1 Local Policy on Street Entertainment 

5.2. The introduction of an Hammersmith & Fulham street entertainment policy 
would set out the Council’s approach to street entertainment and busking 
across the Borough providing clarity for residents, businesses and 
entertainers alike. 

5.3. The policy would recognise the importance of ensuring a vibrant street culture 
whilst seeking to protect residents and businesses from any negative impacts. 
The policy would seek to be light touch whilst providing clear guidance on the 
expected code of conduct to ensure street entertainment is undertaken safely 
and without causing noise nuisance. 

5.4. A policy on its own would be voluntary; however, this does not prevent the 
Council taking enforcement action on a case by case approach where a 
nuisance is being created 

Option 2 Licensing 

5.5. Part V of the London Local Authorities Act 2000 provides optional powers for 
London Councils to adopt to licence busking. Licensing does not prevent any 
type of busking but can introduce regulatory requirements where it is 
considered necessary to control potential negative impacts such as noise. 

5.6. Regulatory conditions can be set where, for example, the entertainment 
includes music or the use of amplifiers, or where there is a potential safety 
risk. Conditions can be imposed such as time restrictions and location. 

5.7. A charge would be levied for the licence and there would be a cost to the 
Council for administering the process. 

5.8. Where busking is performed without a licence or not in compliance with the 
conditions the option would be available to the Council to undertake 
enforcement. 

5.9. Any licensing regime would need to sit alongside a Council policy i.e. Option 1 
plus Option 2 

Option 3 BuskinLondon – London Mayor’s Busking Scheme 

5.10. The Mayor of London has introduced a London wide code for street 
performance that any London Council can sign up to. The policy has been 
created in conjunction with street performers, the Mayor of London, the Police 
and London Councils have already been consulted. The policy aims to strike 
the right balance between the vibrancy of London and protecting residents 
and businesses from any negative impacts. 

Page 48



 

 

5.11. The policy is voluntary and monitored and enforced by the BuskinLondon 
team. The team is made of buskers and events professionals who will help 
build a strong busking community and resolve any problems before they get 
serious. They provide information and advice to buskers. They also collect 
feedback and hold regular performer meetings where issues can be raised 
and questions answered.  

5.12. The team will resolve any problems through a 3 step process. Residents and 
businesses can contact the team directly which sits outside the Council. In the 
most serious of cases the team will consider issuing a Community Protection 
Notice (CPN), which if breached could result in a fixed penalty notice, a court 
summons and seizure of any equipment. 

5.13. The policy is London wide and therefore benefits from a uniform approach. 
The responsibility for monitoring and enforcing sits with the BuskinLondon 
team. There is an annual cost to the Council for adopting this approach. 

5.14. Where a specific problem remains the Council can take its own enforcement 
action through the enforcement of CPN. 

5.15. Option 4 – Do Nothing 

5.16. There is currently no consistent approach to street entertainment in terms of 
either encouraging it as part of an overall cultural vibrancy strategy or 
controlling it within the Borough. 

5.17. The existing approach does not provide clarity to residents, businesses or 
performers of what the Council expects.  

5.18. Doing nothing will continue to leave a vacuum open to interpretation. 

 

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1. The Council will be required to consult on the adoption of a policy and/or 
licensing scheme. 

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. An Equalities Impact Assessment would be taken as part of any consultation 
and adoption of a policy and/or licensing scheme. 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Under the Antisocial Behaviour, Policing & Crime Act 2014 the police and 
local authorities can issue a Community Protection Notice (CPN) if they are 
satisfied on reasonable grounds that the conduct of a business, organisation 
or individual: 

 is having a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the 

locality; and 

 is  persistent or continuing nature; and 

 is unreasonable 

8.2. CPN’s are designed to deal with short or medium-term issues 

8.3. A CPN can include any or all of the following: 

Page 49



 

 

 A requirement to stop doing specified things;  

 A requirement to do specified things;  

 A requirement to take reasonable steps to achieve specified results.  

 

8.4. Before a CPN can be issued a written warning must first be issued informing 
the individual that they will be served with a CPN if they do not desist from 
their behaviour. Should they fail to remedy their behaviour a CPN can be 
issued. Breach of the notice is a criminal offence and can result in a fixed 
penalty notice (of no more than £100) being issued which would discharge 
any liability to conviction.  

8.5. Failure to pay the fixed penalty notice will result in prosecution proceedings 
being instigated.  Should the individual be found guilty of an offence they are 
liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4 on the standard 
scale for individuals or £20,000 for businesses.  

8.6. Issuing a CPN does not discharge the council from its duty to issue an 
Abatement Notice where the behaviour constitutes a statutory nuisance for the 
purposes of Part 3 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.  

Anyone issued with a CPN has the opportunity to appeal it 

8.7. A Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) can be made by a local authority if 
they are satisfied on reasonable grounds that the activities carried out, or likely to 
be carried out, in a public space:  

 have had, or are likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life 
of those in the locality;  

 is, or is likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature;  

 is, or is likely to be, unreasonable; and  

 justifies the restrictions imposed.  

8.8. The maximum duration of a PSPO is three years but they can last for shorter 
periods of time where appropriate. Short-term PSPOs could be used where it is 
not certain that restrictions will have the desired effect and the local authority may 
wish to make an initial PSPO for 12 months and then review the decision.  

8.9. At any point before expiry, the council can extend a PSPO by up to three years if 
they consider that it is necessary to prevent the original behaviour from occurring 
or recurring.  

8.10. It is an offence for a person, without reasonable excuse, to do anything that is 
prohibited by a PSPO (other than consume alcohol), or fail to comply with a 
requirement to which the person is subject under a PSPO.  

8.11. A person guilty of an offence is liable on summary conviction to a fine not 
exceeding level 3 on the standard scale. 

8.12. Before making a PSPO, the council must consult with the local police. 

 

Implications verified/completed by: (Joyce Golder, Principal Solicitor, Legal Services, 
020 7361 2181 

 

Page 50



 

 

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. The consultation and roll out of any policy and/or licensing scheme would 
require an initial one off resourcing cost of around £5,000, which would 
include officer time and publicity. 

9.2. The costs, if the first two options are adopted, would be met from existing 
budgets. The additional costs arising from option 3 would form the basis of 
a growth bid and would be covered as part of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy process.  

9.3. Implications verified/completed by: Gary Hannaway, Head of Finance, 020 
8753 6071 

 

10. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

10.1. The views of the impact on business of any busking/street entertainment 
policy will be considered as part of any future consultation. 

 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

11.1. Noise can be defined as any unwanted sound. Whilst some noise is 
inevitable, exposure to noise can have detrimental effects on human health, 
amenity, productivity and the natural environment. Some people may find the 
noise of city life exciting, whilst others find it intrusive and adversely affecting 
their quality of life. This fact was recognised in the “Noise Policy Statement for 
England” (2010). A key challenge in managing the noise environment from an 
economic perspective is to balance the costs of noise with the costs of 
controlling noise.  

9.4. Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski, Shared Services Risk Manager, 
telephone 020 8753 2587. 

 

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 

 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 

Location 

  

Not applicable 

  

 

Page 51



1 of 8 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS’ SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

28 JUNE 2016 
 

 

POLICING & CRIME UPDATE 
 

Report of the Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Dave Page, Director for Safer Neighbourhoods  
 

Report Author: Claire Rai, Head of 
Community Safety  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3154  
E-mail: claire.rai@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 

 
  

Page 52

Agenda Item 7

mailto:claire.rai@lbhf.gov.uk


2 of 8 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the performance and outcomes of Hammersmith & 

Fulham Police and the Council funded Enhanced Policing Team (EPT) in the 
financial year ending March 2016, highlighting examples of joint working 
between the Police, Council and local residents.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Policy & Advisory Committee note the contents of the report. 

 
3. BOROUGH CRIME UPDATE  

   

3.1. The Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) Challenge: LBHF has 
experienced a decrease of 22.7% in MOPAC 71 offences from the baseline 
year of 2011-12 to 2015-16, exceeding the target of a 20% reduction. The 
reductions over the four years are shown in Table 1.  
 

3.2. There were significant reductions in Burglary (31.7%), Criminal Damage 
(19.29%), Theft from Motor Vehicle (32.64%), Robbery (55.78%) and Theft 
Person (37.42%) 
 

3.3. There was a slight increase in Theft of Motor Vehicle (2.56%) and a significant 
increase in Violence with Injury (23.34%). The increase in Violence with Injury 
can be partly explained by a change during the four year period in the way 
such offences are categorised 
 
Table 1 

 

MOPAC 7 
2011-12 
Baseline 

2015-16 
Target 

2015-
2016 

Actual 

Changes in 
Crimes 

Changes 
in 

Crimes 
% 

Burglary Total 2328 1862  1593 -735 -31.57 

Criminal Damage Total 1742 1394  1406 -336 -19.29 

Theft/Taking of Motor 
Vehicles 

703 562  721 +18 2.56 

Theft from Motor Vehicles 2595 2076  1748 -847 -32.64 

Violence with Injury 1448 1158  1786 +338 23.34 

Robbery Total 787 630  348 -439 -55.78 

Theft Person 1216 973  761 -455 -37.42 

MOPAC 7 10819 8655  8363 -2456 -22.7 

 
3.4 Although the long term trend is of significant reductions in  MOPAC 7 crimes, 

the last year (2015/16) showed a 1% increase in total notifiable offences (full 
report for the financial year shown in Appendix 1). However, only two London 

                                            
1
 The MOPAC Crime Dashboard monitors the figures for seven neighbourhood crimes in London: burglary, 

criminal damage, robbery, theft from a motor vehicle, theft from a person, theft of a motor vehicle and violence 
with injury. 

 

Page 53



3 of 8 
 

boroughs showed a reduction in total notifiable offences in 2015/16 and 
Hammersmith & Fulham was the 6th best performing borough in the MPS. 

 
3.5  Hammersmith & Fulham Police had the 4th best rate of sanctioned detections 

(cases resolved through police generated detections) across all London 
boroughs in 2015/16.  
 

4. ENHANCED POLICING TEAM UPDATE 
 

4.1. From 1st April 2015 the number of additional police officers on the borough 
funded by the council increased from 36 to 44. The ranks and responsibilities 
of the additional officers are detailed in table 2 below. 
 
Table 2: 

Rank Responsibility 

One Inspector Partnerships Inspector, Management of the EPT 

Two Sergeants Partnerships Sergeants, Supervision of the EPT 

31 Constables  Town Centre Constables, split between Shepherds Bush 
Green (18), Hammersmith Broadway (9) and Fulham 
Broadway (4). 

Eight Constables Neighbourhood Constables, divided into a half post each 
for each electoral ward. 

One Constable Crime Prevention Design Advisor (CPDA) 

One Constable Gangs Outreach Officer, working with Youth Offending 
Service 

 
4.2. EPT officers are purchased from MOPAC under the MetPatrol scheme 

whereby for each officer of any rank the council pays for another constable is 
provided at no additional charge.  
 

4.3. All EPT Officers are now funded directly from S1062 monies.  
 
5. ENHANCED POLICING TEAM OUTCOMES (APRIL 15 – MAR 16): 

 
5.1. The key numeric outcomes delivered by the 44 funded officers between April 

2015 and March 2016 are detailed in Table 3 below. Previously, there was no 
performance management framework for the EPT so it is difficult to 
meaningfully compare the outcomes with previous financial years. 
Subsequently, these outcomes should be treated as a baseline figure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
2
 Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, commonly known as s106 

agreements, are a mechanism which make a development proposal acceptable in planning terms, that would not 
otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site specific mitigation of the impact of development. S106 
agreements are often referred to as 'developer contributions', by way of financial contribution to the local 
authority.  

Page 54



4 of 8 
 

Table 3: 

Activity Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015/16 
Total 

Total # of arrests 198 174 177 211 760 

Total # of stop and searches 169 188 294 314 965 

Total # of CAD3 responses 610 343 474 478 1905 

Total # of PNDs4 issued 13 14 50 29 106 

Total # of FPNs5 issued 35 40 21 15 111 

Total # of domestic incidents 33 24 31 39 127 

Total # of alcohol confiscations 256 503 79 32 870 

Total # of drug warnings 35 60 70 52 52 

Total # of vehicle seizures 8 9 0 2 19 

Total # of community events/meetings 36 14 24 26 100 

Joint partnerships initiatives  50 16 24 27 117 

Intel report from IOM visits6 - - 74 73 147 

 
5.2 When the extended EPT contract was put in place officers developed a 

process whereby teams from the council could raise taskings for formal 
assistance from the funded officers to assist with their operations. 
Examples of joint taskings undertaken between EPT and Council Officers 
in the last financial year are detailed below:  

 
- Joint operations with Streetscene Enforcement to tackle issues of ticket 

touting at the Queens Club for both the AEGON tournament and Davis 
Cup. 
 

- Working with Trading Standards on ‘Operation Wagtail’ dealing with 
counterfeit tobacco, supporting Trading Standards officers in executing a 
warrant for counterfeit goods to prevent a breach of the peace and visiting 
victims of fraud to give crime prevention advice.  

 
- Neighbourhood Officers carried out taskings raised by the Housing 

Department including attending the execution of a notice on White City 
Estate to prevent a breach of the peace and targeted patrols on Springvale 
Estate in response to drugs and ASB issues.  

 
- The Crime Prevention Design Advisor (CPDA) carried out a number of 

crime prevention talks to local residents groups in conjunction with the 
Community safety Unit as well as target-hardening visits to victims of hate 
crime referred through the Prevent Team.  

 
 
 
 

                                            
3
 Computer-Aided Dispatch 

4
 Penalty Notice for Disorder 

5
 Fixed Penalty Notice 

6
 Visits to Integrated Offender Management nominals commenced in Quarter 3 and are shown as a new outcome 

from that time.  

 

Page 55



5 of 8 
 

6. JOINT WORKING – POLICE & COUNCIL 
 

6.1. A substantial amount of partnership work takes place between the Police and 
Council, both strategically and operationally at all levels of each organisation.  
 

6.2. The Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) is a statutory body that 
meets twice a year and is responsible for producing the Joint Strategic 
Assessment which informs the borough’s response to crime and disorder in 
the borough. This is attended by senior officers in both the Police and Council.  
 

6.3. The Director for Safer Neighbourhoods and Head of Community Safety meet 
quarterly with the Borough Commander and Superintendent to discuss the 
EPT contract and its overall performance.  
 

6.4. The Council’s Partnership Inspector attends monthly Community Safety 
Management meetings to discuss the performance of the EPT and outcomes 
from joint operations (as referenced in 4.2).  
 

6.5 Officers from the Council’s Safer Neighbourhood Division (Parks Police, 
Neighbourhood Wardens, Anti-Social Behaviour Unit, Community Safety 
and Professional Witness Service) work continuously with the Police to 
both prevent and manage emerging crime issues. Examples of joint work 
undertaken between Police and Council Officers in the last financial are 
detailed below:  

 
- Community Safety Officers (CSOs) work daily with local Policing teams to 

build an evidence base for the prioritisation of temporary CCTV resources 
in borough hotspots.  
 

- Community Safety and Regulatory Officers undertake ‘joint days of action’ 
with local Policing teams. A recent example was in the north of the 
borough where 13 written warnings and nine community protection notices 
were issued to tackle nuisance and antisocial behaviour that had 
generated complaints from local residents and businesses.  

 
- Neighbourhood Warden Service (NWS) undertake regular joint weapons 

and drugs sweeps with local Policing teams on estates. 
 
- A Met funded Police Officer (‘super identifier’) co-located within LBHF 

CCTV control room, working alongside H&F Operatives to identify 
offenders in ‘real-time’.  

 
- Shepherds Bush Town Centre Police Team and the Neighbourhood 

Wardens Service (NWS) enforce the borough’s first Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) on a daily basis. From enactment (Sept 2015) to 
Mar 2016 the Police and NWS have collectively issued 30 FPNs for 
breaches of the order.  

 
- Parks Police, Street Outreach, UKBA Officers and local Police teams 

undertake monthly joint enforcement visits of rough sleeper hotspots, often 

Page 56



6 of 8 
 

resulting in identification of illegal encampments, referrals to appropriate 
homelessness services or enforcement for breach of ‘treaty rights’ 
(immigration offences).  

 
- Community Safety Officers meet weekly with area Police Inspectors to 

share intelligence, review activity and plan how they can work together to 
tackle emerging issues of crime and antisocial behaviour.  

 
- The Local Authority Prevent Team work closely with Police colleagues 

from the Counter Terrorist Command (SO15) to mitigate the risk of 
Prevent related harm and safeguard those local individuals and institutions 
whom may be vulnerable to radicalisation or extremism. 
 

- The Director for Safer Neighbourhoods chairs a fortnightly meeting of the 
Prevent Safeguarding Board which is a multi-agency panel which includes 
the Local Authority and local SO15 officers and assesses potential risk 
and endeavours to mitigate any such risk around local individuals and 
institutions in respect to Prevent related harm.  
 

- The Director for Safer Neighbourhoods also chairs the monthly Channel 
Panel meeting. Channel is the government’s intervention programme 
which sits alongside the Prevent Strategy and is an early intervention, 
multi agency safeguarding process.  

 
7. CRIME & DISORDER – RESIDENT INTERACTION 

 
7.1. As highlighted in Table 2 (section 4.1), funded EPT officers attended 100 

community meetings in 2015/16, in addition to meetings that may have been 
held by the existing Safer Neighbourhood Team provision on the borough. 
These include Neighbourhood Watch meetings, community meetings and 
ward panels. Officers from the councils Community Safety Unit attended 61 
such events in 2015/16 (made up of 21 ward panel meetings and 40 residents 
meetings). 
 

7.2. In addition, officers from Community Safety organised and delivered 26 local 
crime events for residents/employees of the borough, in conjunction with the 
Police in 2015/16. These ranged from crime prevention stands in parks and at 
local hospitals, larger organised crime prevention events to tackle fraud 
prevention and cyber-crime (attended by 150 residents), and counter 
terrorism briefings for 170 council staff following the terror attacks in Paris in 
November 2015.  
 

7.3. Each Safer Neighbourhood Team is scheduled to produce quarterly 
newsletters for residents and hold a street briefing or contact point for 
residents on a monthly basis.  
 

7.4. The Police also works closely with Council officers to encourage membership 
of community initiatives such as Neighbourhood Watch. In LBHF, over 200 
streets are currently covered by a Neighbourhood Watch schemes. Whilst 
new schemes are started regularly, there is a level of attrition where older 

Page 57



7 of 8 
 

schemes fold. Officers form the council are working with the police to re-
energise schemes which have lost their momentum.  
 

7.5. The borough’s Safer Neighbourhood Board meets quarterly. All ward panel 
chairs are invited to be members and membership is also drawn from 
representatives of tenants and residents associations and local business 
forums. In 2015/16 the council helped the SNB organise three crime 
roadshows in the borough where members of the public could attend a Q&A 
session with the Borough Commander.  
 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1. There are no Legal implications in this report.  
 

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1. There are no Financial implications in this report.  
 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 
None. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

Page 58



8 of 8 
 

Appendix 1 – Crime Performance Summary 2015/16 
 

Crime Performance 
Summary Mar2016 - Financial Year 2015-16 to Mar16.pdf

 
 

Page 59



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
  

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
RESIDENTS’ SERVICES POLICY & 

ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

28 JUNE 2016 
 

 

 

COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2016-19 
 

Report of the Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Open Report 

Classification - For Policy & Accountability Review & Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: David Page 
 

Report Author: Amber Burridge 
                           Principal Intelligence Analyst 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 3713 
E-mail: Amber.Burridge@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The 2016-19 Strategic Assessment is an evidence based document underpinning the work of the 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham (LBHF) Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP). 

 
The Assessment recommends the strategic crime and safety priorities for the next three years to 
enable development of long term solutions to the priorities. The Assessment uses a range of data 
sources, analysis and intelligence to recommend the strategic priorities. The Assessment also 
considers the wider local and national crime and disorder priorities (for example from the Mayor’s 
Office for Policing and Crime). 

 
Following this process 7 strategic priorities were identified by the CDRP: 

 
1. Theft and Handling: Focus on “Other Theft” 
2. Motor Vehicle Crime 
3. Violence Crime: Focus on Violence with Injury, Violence Against Women and Girls, Youth 

Violence, Gang Related Violence   
4. Victims: Focus on Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG), Prevent , Child Sexual 

Exploitation, and Hate crime  
5. Burglary 
6. Anti-Social Behaviour: Focusing on Noise Nuisance and Environmental Crime 
7. Adult and Youth Reoffending 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



Accompanying these priorities is a list of recommendations for the CDRP which can be viewed in the 
appendix. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. For the Committee to review and comment on the 7 strategic priorities  
 
2.2. For the Committee to understand why the priorities have been chosen, how they will be 

monitored and what action will be taken to improve performance, outcomes and resident 
satisfaction in the future. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. These seven strategic priorities will inform future activities and initiatives to improve local 
performance, outcomes and resident satisfaction and reassurance over the next three years. 

 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. The 2016-19 Strategic Assessment sets out the evidence base for the crime and safety priorities 
for the next three years. The Assessment includes an analysis of performance over the last year 
as well as longer term trends, includes emerging trends, and considers local and national themes 
and policies. The document also includes a horizon scanning section considering future impacts 
on crime and safety in the Borough (for example, the introduction of night time tubes). 

 
4.2. Between Financial Year 2010-2011 and Financial Year 2015-16, there has been a 15% reduction 

in the number of recorded Total Notifiable Offences and still falls below the London Average for 
volume of offences. However, there has been an increase of 8% in the volume of offences since 
Financial Year 2013-14 to Financial Year 2015-16.  

 
4.3. Overall the number of TNOs increased by 1% over the last year but this varies across different 

crime categories. There were increases in Violent crime (78% in Violence Against the Person, 
17% in Violence with Injury), and Motor Vehicle offences such as Theft Of Motor Vehicle (23% 
increase and did not meet the MOPAC target) and Motor Vehicle Interference and 
Tampering(33% increase). Burglary has also seen an 8% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 
4.4. Due to changes in recording Violence against a Person offences have increased across London 

not just in Hammersmith and Fulham. Hammersmith and Fulham has a higher criminal damage 
conversion rate compared to other London Boroughs. This means that more reported incidents 
of criminal damage are recorded as a crime compared to other Forces. 

 
 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1. The following section is a summary of all identified priority areas and why the CDRP have 
included them. Further details can be accessed in the appendix. 

Page 61



 
Recommended Priorities 

FY16-19 
Reason 

Theft and Handling 

Offences: Focus on Other 

Theft 

 “Other Theft” offences made up 36% of offences in FY14-15 and 33% in FY15-16 and 
are high in volume 

 A large proportion of offences occurred in busy Town Centres or shopping districts 

 High volume of offences 

Motor Vehicle Crime 

 Theft of Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference saw significant 
increases between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 Theft From Motor Vehicle remains consistently high in volume 

 A large proportion of vehicles targeted are Mopeds, Scooters and Motorcycles 

Violent Crime: Focus on 

Violence with Injury, VAWG, 

Youth Violence and Gangs  

 Non Domestic Violence With Injury offences has seen a 14% increase between FY14-15 
and FY15-16 and has the 11th highest rate out of 32 boroughs 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw an 8% increase in Youth Violence and 
ranked the 17

th
 highest in London for FY15-16 

 Gang Flagged offences in the borough reduced by 26% between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 
71% of Gang Flagged offences in FY15-16 were Violence or Robbery related. However 
this flag is subjective and could potentially be under-reported. 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16 there has been a 7% increase in the number of 
Domestic Abuse Incidents and a 7% increase in reported Domestic Violence with Injury 
offences 

Burglary 

 The borough experienced an 8% increase in relation to Burglary offences between 

FY14-15 and FY15-16. This is the 2
nd

 highest increase in all London Boroughs. 

 Burglay in a Dwelling accounts for the majority of Burglary offences, accounting for 

66% of Burglary offences in FY15-16.  

PREVENT 
 The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities 

to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism, 
known as “Prevent Duty”. Local Authorities are included in Schedule 6 of the Act. 

Victims Including Hate 

Crime and Child Sexual 

Exploitation 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw a 16% increase in Racist and Religious 
Hate Crime. 

 The borough ranked 7
th

 highest for the total of Homophobic, Racist and Religious, 
Disability and Faith Hate Crime out of the London Boroughs. 

 There has been a 107% increase in opened investigations into Child Sexual Exploitation 
between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 Sadiq Khan appointed as Mayor of London in May 2016 and proposed to put in place a 
Victims’ Commissioner to deal with victims of Crime 

Anti-Social Behaviour 

 Majority of calls to police tend to be in relation to The majority of these are Rowdy or 
Inconsiderate Behaviour, Rowdy or Nuisance Neighbours and Noise 

 Domestic noise incidents made up a large proportion of incidents, accounting for 49% 
of incidents reported on Uniform in FY15-16. 

 Flytipping still accounts for most of of incidents reported on Confirm in FY15-16 and 
highest volume. 

 Graffiti saw an 19% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

 Flyposting remains high volume despite a 55% reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-
16 

Adult and youth 

Reoffending 

 Data suggests that offending rates are still an issue in the borough. Recommendation 

would be to create a profile in relation to offenders, to understand what factors lead 

to individuals re-offending 

 
 

Page 62



6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

6.1. A number of working groups will be established with a lead officer for each priority. These 
groups will take the lead on identifying relevant actions and interventions to ensure 
improvements in each of the priority areas. These working groups will report back to the CDRP 
which is chaired by Borough Commander of the Metropolitan Police. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 

This Assessment has been produced in partnership with the Police and other partners who sit on 
the CDRP board. 

8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

Equality impact assessments will be completed as and when required following any further work 
on the strategic priorities. 

9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 
 

10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

The Council agreed to fund 44 additional police officers in the Borough from April 2015 for a 
period of 3 years. The Hammersmith and Fulham Policing Team (HFPT) will consist of one Police 
Inspector, two Police Sergeants and 41 Police Constables. This report will help the HFPT to 
reduce crime and disorder and increase public reassurance. 

 
11.  IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 
 Reducing the rate of crime within town centres will have a positive impact on businesses. The 

Hammersmith BID Operations manager sits on the CDRP and is also involved in delivering the SA. 
 

12.        PROCUREMENT AND IT STRATEGY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Community Safety Strategic Assessment Priorities 2016-19 

Page 63



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Protective marking: None 

Publication scheme: No – Public Interest Exemption – The Prevention and Detection of 
Crime & The Apprehension or Prosecution of Offenders (s31 FOIA 
2000)  

Title and version: Strategic Assessment v1: 13/06/16  

Summary: This Strategic Assessment identifies the nature and scale of 
offences in Hammersmith and Fulham to set the priorities for the 
borough for the next three years 

Author: Amber Burridge – Principal Intelligence Analyst, Insight and 
Analytics Team  

Authorising officers: David Page   

Dissemination: Partner Agencies and the Metropolitan Police Service  

Creating Unit: Insight and Analytics Team , Hammersmith and Fulham council 

Date created: 13/06/16  

Review date: 12 months after creation date  

  

Hammersmith & Fulham Community 

Safety 

Strategic Assessment 

2016-19 

Page 64



 

2 
 

Contents 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

Methodology ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Review of Priorities and Recommended Priorities ................................................................................. 7 

Crime Overview ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Crime Performance overview: Financial Year 2014-15 and Financial Year 2015-16 .............................. 9 

MOPAC 7 Review .................................................................................................................................. 12 

FY15-16 Overview ................................................................................................................................. 12 

Theft and Handling ................................................................................................................................ 15 

Other Theft............................................................................................................................................ 15 

Motor Vehicle Crime ............................................................................................................................. 15 

Theft of Motor vehicle .......................................................................................................................... 15 

Theft From Motor vehicle ..................................................................................................................... 17 

Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference ......................................................................................... 18 

Violence ................................................................................................................................................ 21 

Non Domestic Violence with Injury ...................................................................................................... 21 

Youth Violence ...................................................................................................................................... 22 

Gang Related Violence .......................................................................................................................... 24 

Ambulance Call outs ............................................................................................................................. 24 

Burglary ................................................................................................................................................. 28 

Prevent .................................................................................................................................................. 30 

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) ......................................................................................... 30 

Hate Crime ............................................................................................................................................ 33 

Child Sexual Exploitation ....................................................................................................................... 36 

Anti-Social Behaviour ............................................................................................................................ 37 

Police Calls ............................................................................................................................................ 37 

ReACT .................................................................................................................................................... 38 

Uniform ................................................................................................................................................. 40 

Adult and Youth Reoffending ................................................................................................................ 45 

Adult Reoffending ................................................................................................................................. 46 

Youth Reoffending ................................................................................................................................ 48 

Neighbourhood Confidence and Crime Comparator tool .................................................................... 50 

Policy Landscape ................................................................................................................................... 51 

Page 65



 

3 
 

 

 
 

INTRODUCTION: 

The 2016-19 Strategic Assessment is a joint document between the London Borough of 

Hammersmith & Fulham (LBHF) and the Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) members 

setting out the crime and safety strategic priorities for the next three years. This will allow more long 

term solutions to be developed to meet the objectives and proposals put forward in this Strategic 

Assessment. 

This Assessment uses a range of data sources and methodologies to recommend the strategic 

priorities using an evidence based approach. 

The Assessment forms one part of the Strategic Assessment process. Following sign-off through the 

Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP), the priorities and recommendations from this 

Assessment should help inform Action Plans based around the priorities. These plans should be 

closely and routinely monitored, with a robust evaluation at the end of the cycle, which can then 

feed into the next Strategic Assessment. 

METHODOLOGY: 

Figures that have been obtained for this document have come from METSTATS, which are based on 
reported date as opposed to committed date and also based on initial classification. These figures 
were downloaded 13/05/16 and are subject to change.  

Where comparisons with other boroughs have been made in relation to rates per thousand 
population, usual resident population figures used are those which were collated through the 2011 
Census.  

Of note - crime figures may differ from performance figures. The reason for this is that for 
performance monitoring purposes, crimes are taken from the original classification of the crime as 
these have been confirmed. However classification may change due to investigation. The data was 
downloaded using Business Objects developed queries from the Crime Information Reporting 
System (CRIS). For mapping purposes these crimes were then matched to those crimes that had 
been geocoded on the Police geocoding system. This data was then cleansed and duplicates 
removed.  

Please note that not all crimes can be given a precise location and mapped if a victim has not 
provided the information. Therefore, THESE FIGURES ARE TO BE USED AS A GUIDE ONLY AS THIS IS A 
SNAPSHOT OF LIVE DATA AND AT NO TIME IS THE DATA RECONCILED. The figures are not to be used 
for performance purposes under any circumstance as they will differ from the number of crimes that 
are presented as the official published figures for Hammersmith and Fulham borough as a whole.  

Published figures at borough ward and lower level can be found on the Metropolitan Police website 
(http://www.met.police.uk/crimefigures/) and on the crime mapping website also 
(http://maps.met.police.uk/).  

Page 66

http://maps.met.police.uk/


 

4 
 

For ambulance data, data-sets were downloaded from the London Analyst Support Site (LASS) 
covering FY10-11 to FY15-16, using the ambulance assault data. Categories for injury type are 
determined using the “L1_All_AssaultDescriptionLASS_LAS” field.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham saw an increase of 8% in the volume of Total 
Notifiable offences between Financial Year 2013-14 to Financial Year 2015-16 and a 2% increase 
between Financial Year 14-15 and Financial Year 15-16, which falls in line with the rest of London. 

The borough has the 7th highest rank of Total Notifiable offences for FY15-16 of all London boroughs. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16 the borough experienced significant increases in Violence With Injury, 
Motor Vehicle Crime, Burglary, Domestic Violence with Injury and Hate Crime. 

The borough met the target for most of the MOPAC 7 categories except for Violence With Injury, 
Criminal Damage and Theft of Motor Vehicle offences. 

Overall, Shepherds Bush Green and Hammersmith Broadway both show a high rate for a number of 
offences, which may be due to these being popular and busy Town Centres. 

Theft and Handling offences accounted for 43% of all offences in FY15-16. The majority of these are 
Other Theft Offences, but Theft of Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference 
saw significant increases between FY14-15 and FY15-16. Theft From Motor Vehicle remains 
consistently high in volume. 

Vehicles that have been predominately targeted for Theft of Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle 
Tampering are Mopeds, Scooters and Motorcycles. 

Violence with Injury (VWI) offences have increased by 12% between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

Serious wounding offences saw a 25% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16, which may be due to 
the change in classification. 

Non Domestic Violence With Injury offences has seen a 14% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 
and has the 11th highest rate out of 32 boroughs 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw an 8% increase in Youth Violence and ranked the 
17th highest in London for FY15-16. Serious Youth Violence has remained steady between FY14-15 
and FY15-16. 

Gang Flagged offences in the borough reduced by 26% between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 71% of Gang 
Flagged offences in FY15-16 were Violence or Robbery related. 

Ambulance Call outs for Assaults increased by 15% between FY14-15 and FY15-16, but reduced by 
49% between FY10-11 and FY15-16. The majority of calls in FY15-16 were in relation to Other Serious 
Injury assaults (60%) followed by Minor Assaults (34%). 

The borough experienced an 8% increase in relation to Burglary offences between FY14-15 and 
FY15-16. This is the 2nd highest increase in all London Boroughs. 

Page 67



 

5 
 

Burglay in a Dwelling accounts for the majority of Burglary offences, accounting for 66% of Burglary 
offences in FY15-16.  

Ravenscourt Park had the highest rate for Burglary (Dwelling) in FY15-16 and Shepherd’s Bush Green 
with Hammersmith Broadway had the highest rate for Burglary (Other). 

The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities to have due 
regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism, known as “Prevent Duty”. 
Local Authorities are included in Schedule 6 of the Act. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16 there has been a 7% increase in the number of Domestic Abuse 
Incidents and a 7% increase in reported Domestic Violence with Injury offences. For FY15-16, 
borough had the 16th highest rate in London. 

The LBHF MARAC saw a 29% increase in referrals between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw a 16% increase in Racist and Religious Hate Crime. 

The borough ranked 7th highest for the total of Homophobic, Racist and Religious, Disability and 
Faith Hate Crime out of the London Boroughs. 

Child Sexual Exploitation Police recorded cases saw a 107% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

There has been a 20% reduction in the number of calls made to Police for Anti Social Behaviour 
between FY13-14 and FY15-16. The majority of these are Rowdy or Inconsiderate Behaviour, Rowdy 
or Nuisance Neighbours and Noise. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 16% reduction in the number of recorded incidents on 
the council ReACT service.  

Noise and Verbal Abuse made up the largest proportion of incidents recorded on the ReACT system 
between FY13-14 and FY15-16. 

For FY15-16, Wormholt and White City had the highest rate of incidents, as well as highest volume of 
incidents, followed by Shepherd’s Bush Green and North End. Ravenscourt Park and Addison and 
Parson’s Green & Walham had the lowest rates of ASB incidents. 

There was a 10% reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-16 for Noise incidents recorded on Uniform. 
Domestic noise incidents made up a large proportion of incidents, accounting for 49% of incidents 
reported in FY15-16. 

There was a 9% increase in incidents recorded on Confirm between FY14-15 and FY15-16. The 
majority of incidents reported were in relation to Flytipping (34% of incidents reported in FY15-16 
and highest volume). Graffiti and saw an 19% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 and Fly-posting 
still remains high volume despite a 55% reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

FY13-14 data showed the borough has the 6th highest rate of Adult offenders in London and 30.5% of 

Adult offenders went on to reoffend in the following 12 months, the 11th highest rate of all Local 

Authorities. 

Page 68



 

6 
 

FY13-14 data shows the number of Youth offenders has reduced by 54.6% since FY05-06 but 47.2% 

of Youth offenders re-offended within 12 months. This is the 2nd highest rate in London and 12th 

highest nationally.  

Using the Neighbour Confidence and Crime Comparison Tool, 75% of respondents were not very 

worried or worried at all by crime in the borough and 64% believed the police dealt with drug 

dealing effectively. 

 

  

Summary of Recommendations: 

 

 The new Information Sharing Protocol developed in 2016 is agreed and signed by all Partnership 
agencies to enable efficient data sharing.  

 Partnership develops joint analysis problem profiles in relation to priorities set out in the 
document. 

 Consider using analytical tools such as Predictive Analysis and Predictive Mapping.  

 Assess the extent to which predictive techniques can assist in reducing adult offending and youth 
reoffending; and how potential repeat victims and locations can be identified and safeguarded.  

 
 

 

Page 69



 

7 
 

REVIEW OF PRIORITIES AND RECOMMENDED PRIORITIES 
The table below looks at the priorities recommended for FY15-16 and reviews the progress of each: 
 

Recommended Priorities FY15-16 Review 

Adult and youth Reoffending 

Data from 2014 showed the borough had the 6
th

 highest rate 
of Adult offenders in London 
30.5% of Adult offenders went on to reoffend in the following 
12 months, the 11

th
 highest rate of all Local Authorities. 

47.2% of Youth offenders re-offended within 12 months. This 
is the 2

nd
 highest rate in London 

Violent Crime: Focus on Violence Against the 

Person and VAWG 

Violence Against the Person has increased, with significant 
increases in Serious Wounding and Harassment offences. 
There was a change in classification for Serious Wounding 
which may account for the increase and harassment may have 
increased as since April 2015, some offences previously not 
classed as Notifiable have been included as part of harassment 
owing to amendments to the Malicious Communications Act 
(1988) and to Section 127 of the Communications Act 2003 
There was a 6.2% increase in Domestic Violence with Injury 
offences between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

Motor Vehicle Crime 

Continues to be an issue for the borough. Theft of Motor 
Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference saw 
significant increases between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

Theft From Motor Vehicle remains consistently high in 
volume 

Environmental Crime: Focus on Flytipping 

The majority of incidents reported in FY15-16 to Confirm were 
in relation to Flytipping (31% of incidents reported in FY15-16 
and highest volume) 
 

Antisocial Behaviour: Focus on Noise 

There was a 10% reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-16 for 
Noise incidents recorded on Uniform. Domestic noise incidents 
made up a large proportion of incidents, accounting for 49% of 
reports. 

Victims Including Child Sexual Exploitation 

There has been a 107% increase in opened investigations into 
Child Sexual Exploitation between FY14-15 and FY15-16 
Sadiq Khan appointed as Mayor of London in May 2016 and 
proposed to put in place a Victims’ Commissioner to deal with 
victims of Crime 

Problem Locations: Town Centres Shepherds Bush Green and Hammersmith Broadway both 
show a high rate for a number of offences in FY15-16 

 
  

Page 70



 

8 
 

The table below looks at the priorities recommended for FY15-18, based on the analysis compiled 
during the Strategic Assessment: 

Recommended Priorities 

FY16-19 
Reason 

Theft and Handling 

Offences: Focus on Other 

Theft 

“Other Theft” offences made up 36% of offences in FY14-15 and 33% in FY15-16 and are 
high in volume 
A large proportion of offences occurred in busy Town Centres or shopping districts 
High volume of offences 

Motor Vehicle Crime 

Theft of Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference saw significant 
increases between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

Theft From Motor Vehicle remains consistently high in volume 

A large proportion of vehicles targeted are Mopeds, Scooters and Motorcycles 

Violent Crime: Focus on 

Violence with Injury, VAWG, 

Youth Violence and Gangs  

Non Domestic Violence With Injury offences has seen a 14% increase between 
FY14-15 and FY15-16 and has the 11th highest rate out of 32 boroughs 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw an 8% increase in Youth Violence and 
ranked the 17

th
 highest in London for FY15-16 

Gang Flagged offences in the borough reduced by 26% between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 71% 
of Gang Flagged offences in FY15-16 were Violence or Robbery related. However this flag is 
subjective and could potentially be under-reported. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16 there has been a 7% increase in the number of Domestic 
Abuse Incidents and a 7% increase in reported Domestic Violence with Injury offences 

Burglary 

The borough experienced an 8% increase in relation to Burglary offences between FY14-15 
and FY15-16. This is the 2

nd
 highest increase in all London Boroughs. 

Burglay in a Dwelling accounts for the majority of Burglary offences, accounting for 66% of 
Burglary offences in FY15-16.  

PREVENT 
The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities to 
have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism, known as 
“Prevent Duty”. Local Authorities are included in Schedule 6 of the Act. 

Victims Including Hate 

Crime and Child Sexual 

Exploitation 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw a 16% increase in Racist and Religious 
Hate Crime. 

The borough ranked 7
th

 highest for the total of Homophobic, Racist and Religious, Disability 
and Faith Hate Crime out of the London Boroughs. 

There has been a 107% increase in opened investigations into Child Sexual Exploitation 
between FY14-15 and FY15-16 
Sadiq Khan appointed as Mayor of London in May 2016 and proposed to put in place a 
Victims’ Commissioner to deal with victims of Crime 

Anti-Social Behaviour 

Majority of calls to police tend to be in relation to The majority of these are Rowdy or 
Inconsiderate Behaviour, Rowdy or Nuisance Neighbours and Noise 
Domestic noise incidents made up a large proportion of incidents, accounting for 49% of 
incidents reported on Uniform in FY15-16. 
Flytipping still accounts for most of of incidents reported on Confirm in FY15-16 and 
highest volume. 
Graffiti saw a 19% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

Adult and youth 

Reoffending 

Data suggests that offending rates are still an issue in the borough. Recommendation 
would be to create a profile in relation to offenders, to understand what factors lead to 
individuals re-offending 

Page 71



 

9 
 

 

CRIME OVERVIEW: 

The chart below shows that between Financial Year 2010-2011 and Financial Year 2015-16, there has 

been a 15% reduction in the number of recorded Total Notifiable Offences and still falls below the 

London Average for volume of offences. However, there has been an increase of 8% in the volume of 

offences since Financial Year 2013-14 to Financial Year 2015-16. This pattern has also been seen by 

London as a whole (which has seen an increase of 5% in the average): 

 

The chart below shows how Hammersmith and Fulham compare to other London boroughs based 

on rate for FY15-16, although City of London has been excluded. In terms of rate per thousand 

population, Hammersmith and Fulham is ranked 7th highest for rate of offences: 

 

CRIME PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW: FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15 

AND FINANCIAL YEAR 2015-16: 

Page 72



 

10 
 

Since FY14-15, there has been a 1% increase in the number of TNOs reported in the borough. The 

borough is one of 22 in London which has seen an increase, but is ranked 6th lowest rate out of 

London Boroughs in terms of % change between FY14-15 and FY15-16 of TNOs reported: 

 

Thetable below shows a breakdown in terms of offences committed in the borough. There was a 

significant increase in Violent crime and Motor Vehicle offences such as (Theft Of Motor Vehicle and 

Motor Vehicle Interference and Tampering). Burglary has also seen an increase between FY14-15 

and FY15-16, however it did see a particular low in FY13-14. 

Page 73



 

11 
 

 

  

Murder 2 0 q -2 -100.0 0.0

Wounding/ GBH 484 604 p 120 24.8 3.3

Assault with Injury 1097 1149 p 52 4.7 6.3

Common Assault 1432 1584 p 152 10.6 8.7

Offensive Weapon 110 118 p 8 7.3 0.6

Harassment 1787 2210 p 423 23.7 12.1

Other Violence 178 201 p 23 12.9 1.1

Gun Crime 22 28 p 6 27.3 0.2

Knife Crime 60 65 p 5 8.3 0.4

Youth Violence 258 282 p 24 9.3 1.5

Serious Youth Violence 100 103 p 3 3.0 0.6

Violence Against the Person Total 5090 5866 p 776 15.2 32.1

Violence with Injury 1593 1761 p 168 10.5 9.6

Rape 91 109 p 18 19.8 0.6

Other Sexual 202 254 p 52 25.7 1.4

Sexual Offences Total 293 363 p 70 23.9 2.0

Personal Property 372 315 q -57 -15.3 1.7

Business Property 14 31 p 17 121.4 0.2

Robbery Total 386 346 q -40 -10.4 1.9

Burglary in a Dwelling 962 1036 p 74 7.7 4.2

Burglary in Other Buildings 508 544 p 36 7.1 12.6

Burglary Total 1470 1580 p 110 7.5 8.7

Theft/Taking of Motor Vehicle 585 718 p 133 22.7 3.9

Theft From Motor Vehicle 1814 1741 q -73 -4.0 9.5

Motor Vehicle Interface and Tampering 258 343 p 85 32.9 1.9

Theft From Shops 1647 1582 q -65 -3.9 8.7

Theft Person 770 749 q -21 -2.7 4.1

Theft/Taking of Pedal Cycles 741 675 q -66 -8.9 3.7

Other Theft 3296 2914 q -382 -11.6 16.0

Handling Stolen Goods 56 52 q -4 -7.1 0.3

Total Theft and Handling 9167 8774 q -393 -4.3 48.1

Other Fraud and Forgery 30 16 q -14 -46.7 0.1

Total Fraud and Forgery 30 18 q -12 -40.0 0.1

CD to a Dwelling 349 304 p -45 -12.9 1.7

CD to Other Building 205 148 p -57 -27.8 0.8

CD to Motor Vehicle 490 524 p 34 6.9 2.9

Other Criminal Damage 383 380 p -3 -0.8 2.1

Total Criminal Damage 1463 1407 p -56 -3.8 7.7

Drug Trafficking 60 66 p 6 10.0 0.4

Possession of Drugs 1565 1337 q -228 -14.6 7.3

Other Drugs 21 19 q -2 -9.5 0.1

Total Drugs 1646 1422 q -224 -13.6 7.8

Going Equipped 63 47 q -16 -25.4 0.3

Other Notifiable 374 363 q -11 -2.9 2.0

Total Other 437 410 q -27 -6.2 2.2

Domestic Abuse Incidents 3046 3250 p 204 6.7 17.8

Domestic abuse Violence With Injury 485 515 p 30 6.2 2.8

Homophobic Crime 51 52 p 1 2.0 0.3

Racist and Relgious Crime 344 398 p 54 15.7 2.2

Islamophobia 24 46 p 22 91.7 0.3

Anti-Semitic 9 5 q -4 -44.4 0.0

Faith Hate 38 45 p 7 18.4 0.2

Disability Hate Crime 5 12 p 7 140.0 0.1

TNOs 20226 20463 p 237 1.2 112.1

Other

Hate Crime

Crime Type 2014-2015
2015-

2016 

Theft and Handling Offences

Criminal Damage

Fraud

Drugs

Violent Crime

Sexual Offences

Robbery Offences

Burglary Dwelling

Rate per 1000 

pop FY15-16
% changeMain Category Trend

Actual 

Change

Page 74



 

12 
 

MOPAC 7 REVIEW: 

In 2012, Boris Johnson set out the 7 crime priorities in his Police and Crime Plan1 to reduce crime by 

20%. The table below sets out the Priorities and what the figures were at the end of FY15-16 (note 

these figures may differ from the MOPAC dashboard, but has used the static figures obtained from 

METSTATS and figures are subject to change due to review2): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table above shows that the borough met most of the MOPAC 7 targets, except for Criminal 

Damage (1% short), Theft of Motor Vehicle (saw a 5% increase – see section 2.2) and Violence With 

Injury (saw a 23% increase – see section 3). Hammersmith and Fulham has a higher conversion rate 

for Criminal Damage offences compared to other boroughs. The new priorities have not yet been set 

by MOPAC. 

FY15-16 OVERVIEW: 

In both FY14-15 and FY15-16, Theft and Handling offences made up a large proportion of the 

offences committed in the borough (46% and 43% of TNOs respectively): 

                                                                 
1
 https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mopac_2016_report.pdf 

2
 Obtained from METSTATS 

MOPAC categories 
FY11-
12 FY15-16 Change 

Violence With Injury Offs 1448 1798 24% 

Total Burglary Offs 2328 1592 -32% 

Total Robbery Offs 787 347 -56% 

Theft from MV Offs 2535 1748 -31% 

Theft Taking of MV Offs 703 720 2% 

Theft Person Offs 1216 761 -37% 

Total Criminal Damage Offs 1742 1407 -19% 

Page 75



 

13 
 

 

Ward Crimes: 

The table below shows rates per thousand population for various crime categories per ward for 

FY15-16. Shepherds Bush Green and Hammersmith Broadway both show a high rate for a number of 

offences, however these two areas also have busy town centres and have seen a high volume of 

offences throughout the year, particulaly with regards to Violence Against the Person, Other Theft, 

Theft Person and Drug offences.   

 

 
 
 
 

W
a
rd

T
N

O
 O

ff
s

V
io

le
n

c
e
 A

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 P

e
rs

o
n

 O
ff

s

W
o

u
n

d
in

g
 G

B
H

 O
ff

s

A
s
s
a
u

lt
 w

it
h

 I
n

ju
ry

 O
ff

s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 A
s
s
a
u

lt
 O

ff
s

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
s

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n

c
e
 O

ff
s

G
u

n
 C

ri
m

e
 O

ff
s

K
n

if
e
 C

ri
m

e
 O

ff
s

S
e
ri

o
u

s
 Y

o
u

th
 V

io
le

n
c
e

Y
o

u
th

 V
io

le
n

c
e

T
o

ta
l 

S
e
x
u

a
l 

O
ff

e
n

c
e
s

T
o

ta
l 

R
o

b
b

e
ry

 O
ff

s

B
u

rg
la

ry
 i

n
 a

 D
w

e
ll

in
g

 O
ff

s

B
u

rg
la

ry
 i

n
 O

th
e
r 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 O

ff
s

T
h

e
ft

 T
a
k
in

g
 o

f 
M

V
 O

ff
s

T
h

e
ft

 f
ro

m
 M

V
 O

ff
s

M
V

 I
n

te
rf

e
re

n
c
e
 &

 T
a
m

p
e
ri

n
g

 O
ff

s

O
th

e
r 

T
h

e
ft

 O
ff

s

T
h

e
ft

 P
e
rs

o
n

 O
ff

s

H
a
n

d
li

n
g

 S
to

le
n

 G
o

o
d

s
 O

ff
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
ri

m
in

a
l 

D
a
m

a
g

e
 O

ff
s

T
o

ta
l 

D
ru

g
 O

ff
s

H
o

m
o

p
h

o
b

ic
 H

a
te

 C
ri

m
e
 O

ff
s

R
a
c
is

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
li

g
io

u
s
 H

a
te

 C
ri

m
e
 O

ff
s

F
a
it

h
 H

a
te

 C
ri

m
e
 O

ff
s

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 H

a
te

 C
ri

m
e
 O

ff
s

D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 A

b
u

s
e
 V

W
I 

O
ff

s

Addison 109.9 30.6 2.7 5.7 10.2 9.7 1.6 0.2 0.8 0.4 1.5 2.6 1.7 6.5 2.7 4.4 9.4 1.6 15.2 2.2 0.3 7.6 8.4 0.3 1.9 0.5 0.0 3.2

Askew 86.9 25.8 2.9 5.4 5.8 10.1 1.0 0.3 1.3 0.6 1.7 1.7 2.7 7.3 2.0 3.7 10.4 2.6 7.8 1.1 0.4 7.7 5.4 0.1 1.4 0.0 0.1 3.8

Avonmore and Brook Green 77.0 19.9 1.6 3.0 5.2 8.6 0.7 0.1 0.4 0.2 0.7 2.0 1.5 4.7 2.9 3.6 9.5 1.6 11.9 2.8 0.2 5.5 4.9 0.2 0.9 0.0 0.2 1.5

College Park and Old Oak 115.4 42.9 6.5 9.4 9.6 14.8 1.3 0.2 1.2 1.6 2.9 3.5 1.7 6.2 4.1 3.3 9.4 1.6 12.8 3.1 0.1 8.8 6.5 0.2 1.3 0.2 0.0 3.9

Fulham Broadway 99.5 28.1 3.5 4.8 7.5 11.4 0.5 0.2 1.5 0.7 1.5 2.9 2.4 6.1 3.7 4.1 5.5 0.9 13.3 3.5 0.5 8.6 4.6 0.2 1.4 0.0 0.1 3.0

Fulham Reach 95.1 35.7 3.4 8.4 11.4 11.2 1.0 0.2 0.6 0.5 0.9 2.3 1.2 4.9 2.0 3.0 7.8 1.7 11.8 2.4 0.3 7.6 5.6 0.2 2.4 0.1 0.1 1.5

Hammersmith Broadway 232.4 59.9 5.6 10.8 14.3 23.7 3.7 0.3 0.9 0.7 2.9 3.2 2.9 5.2 4.9 4.7 16.1 2.7 39.8 11.7 0.7 14.9 21.1 0.3 5.6 0.3 0.0 3.9

Munster 56.4 14.4 1.4 2.5 3.6 6.2 0.5 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.6 0.7 0.9 5.4 2.5 4.5 8.8 2.4 6.7 0.4 0.1 4.1 1.8 0.3 1.1 0.2 0.0 1.9

North End 76.5 25.3 3.4 5.9 6.4 8.1 0.7 0.1 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.4 2.1 3.9 2.2 2.3 5.6 1.1 9.3 2.2 0.3 6.3 6.7 0.1 1.5 0.3 0.2 2.5

Palace Riverside 79.8 23.9 1.5 5.3 6.4 9.6 0.7 0.0 0.3 0.3 1.3 0.8 0.8 5.1 1.3 4.8 10.2 2.9 7.2 2.3 0.0 6.1 9.1 0.5 1.6 0.3 0.0 2.5

Parsons Green and Walham 111.3 26.4 2.5 5.5 8.0 10.0 0.3 0.0 0.5 0.3 0.7 1.9 1.4 4.9 4.6 6.9 10.5 2.6 21.4 4.7 0.0 6.9 11.8 0.2 2.1 0.1 0.0 1.9

Ravenscourt Park 105.9 22.3 1.8 3.5 6.9 9.5 0.5 0.0 0.8 0.7 1.3 0.9 1.7 9.6 3.1 3.3 23.4 3.3 15.0 1.3 0.1 6.5 5.4 0.6 1.7 0.2 0.0 0.7

Sands End 65.9 24.0 1.6 5.3 6.4 9.6 0.9 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.9 1.5 0.5 5.0 2.2 3.8 5.8 1.4 8.5 1.3 0.1 5.4 1.8 0.2 1.2 0.2 0.1 3.5

Shepherd's Bush Green 286.2 79.4 10.2 14.7 22.8 28.6 1.7 0.2 2.6 1.8 3.5 3.2 5.9 6.7 5.3 4.4 9.4 1.3 50.0 21.4 0.9 12.2 21.6 0.8 7.1 0.9 0.0 5.0

Town 85.3 24.1 2.4 4.5 7.3 8.8 1.1 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.9 1.5 0.9 3.4 2.7 5.0 5.3 1.5 14.7 2.9 0.3 6.2 4.6 0.2 1.3 0.2 0.0 1.9

Wormholt and White City 75.6 28.8 2.0 5.7 6.6 12.4 1.3 0.3 0.7 0.3 2.0 1.5 1.3 5.8 1.6 1.7 6.8 1.2 7.5 1.6 0.2 7.5 5.6 0.2 1.9 0.5 0.1 3.6

Page 76



 

14 
 

 

Key Points: 

 Between Financial Year 2014-15 and Financial Year 2015-16 there was a 1% increase in Total 

Notifiable Offences., but overall a 15% reduction since Financial Year 10-11 

 The borough did not reach the MOPAC 7 target for Criminal Damage, Theft of Motor Vehicle or 

Violence with Injury. 

 The majority of offences in the borough FY15-16 were classed as Theft and Handling offences 

 Shepherds Bush Green and Hammersmith Broadway both show a high rate for a number of 

offences, however these two areas also have busy town centres 

Recommendations: 

 Profile to be carried out on the Town Centres to identify key hotspot locations, perpetrators 

and victims, such as whether the victims are residents or visitors. 

 

Page 77



 

15 
 

THEFT AND HANDLING: 
The majority of offences that fall into this category are predominately “Other Theft” offences, which 

made up 36% of offences in FY14-15 and 33% in FY15-16. Of note, Motor Vehicle Offences have seen 

a significant increase, with both Motor Vehicle Tampering seeing a 33% increase and Theft of Motor 

Vehicle offences seeing a 23% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16.  

 

OTHER THEFT 
Other Theft accounted for 33% of Theft and Handling offences within the borough in FY15-16. Based 

on data obtained from the Crime Reporting Intelligence System (CRIS): 

 Offences occurred throughout the year, however it can be seen that peak days were at 
weekends.  

 Offences were reported between 13:00hrs and 19:00hrs. 

 A large proportion of offences occurred in busy Town Centres or shopping districts, such as 
Ariel Way (13%), King Street (6%) and Uxbridge Road (5%). 

 A large proportion of offences happened within stores, shops or supermarkets (24%), within 
Licensed Premises (18%), Cafes, Coffee shops or Take aways (9%) or from restaurants (6%).  

 In 97% of offences that occurred at garages, it was in relation to someone making off 
without payment. 

 Money items such as cash or cards made up 22% (combined) of property stolen during these 
offences. Mobile phones made up 15% of the property stolen and purses or wallets also 
contributed to 10% of property stolen during this period. Portable objects are mainly 
targeted due to ease of taking the item.  

 

MOTOR VEHICLE CRIME 
THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE 
Theft of Motor Vehicle is one of the three Crime types where the borough did not reach the 20% 

MOPAC reduction target. In fact it saw a 23% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16.  Based on 

FY15-16 figures, the borough has the 5th highest rate in London: 

Page 78



 

16 
 

 

The forecasting graph3 below indicates that although the volume of offences may reduce slightly 

next year, they may increase again and be of similar levels to that of FY11-12: 

 

 

 Offences occurred throughout the year, but peaked slightly during the darker months of 
September to December.  

 Offences peaked slightly more during the week between Monday to Friday than at the 
weekends. 

 32% of offences occurred overnight and 13% over a period of 2 or more days, according to 
victim reports of when they last saw the vehicle pre and post the offence occuring.  

 For overnight offences, a large proportion occurred between 17:00hrs and 09:00hrs. For 
those which occurred on the same day, peak times were between 17:00hrs and 01:00hrs. 

 In 71% of offences, a Motor Cycle, Moped or Scooter was stolen, with Vespas accounting for 
19% of model stolen. 

                                                                 
3
 Using forecasting tool in excel 

Page 79



 

17 
 

 

THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 
Although there was a 5% reduction in offences between FY14-15 and FY15-16, Theft From Motor 

Vehicle offences accounted for 20% of Theft and Handling offences and 9% of all TNOs. In FY15-16, 

the borough had the 2nd highest rate in London: 

 

 Offences occurred throughout the year, but peaked slightly during the darker months of 
September to January. There was also a spike in April and May 2015 
 

 
 

 Offences peaked slightly more during the week between Monday to Friday than at the 
weekends. 

 63% of offences occurred on the same day, 26% of offences occurred overnight and 11% 
over a period of 2 or more days according to victim reports of when they last saw the vehicle 
pre and post the offence occuring. 

Page 80



 

18 
 

 For those which occurred on the same day, peak times were between 09:00hrs and 
21:00hrs. For overnight offences, a large proportion occurred between 19:00hrs and 
10:00hrs. 

 In 31% of offences, the window was smashed and in 7% the vehicle was left insecure. In 5% 
of offences there was no damage.  

 The majority of property stolen was in the form of money - cards, cheques and cash, both 
Foreign and British currency (14%); computer equipment / laptop (8%); clothing items (8%) 
or mobile phones (7%).  
 

MOTOR VEHICLE TAMPERING AND INTERFERENCE 
Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference has seen a 33% increase since FY14-15 but also 

significant increases since FY10-11 (103% - n169 to n363). The chart below demonstrates how these 

offences may increase further over the next couple of years: 

 

Furthermore, the borough saw the highest rate of Motor Vehicle Interference and Tampering in 

FY15-16 in London: 

 

Page 81



 

19 
 

Offences peaked last year during May and August, although long term trends suggests it tends to 

peak between April and May and then November. The chart below also shows the significant 

increase of offences last Financial Year compared to long term trends: 

 

 Majority of incidents in FY15-16 occurred on the same day (59%). 30% occurred overnight 
and 11% occurred over a period of time, according to victim reports of when they last saw 
the vehicle pre and post the offence occuring. 

 For those that occurred on the same day, offences peaked between 17:00hrs and 18:00hrs 
and again between 00:00hrs and 01:00hrs. For offences which occurred overnight, peak 
hours were between 19:00hrs and 09:00 hrs. 

 A large proportion of offences occurred between Saturday and Monday 

 In 29% of offences, a window was smashed. In 8% the ignition was damaged and in 6% of 
offences, the locks were damaged.  

 19% of the vehicles targeted were Mopeds / Scooters / Motorcycles. 

Page 82



 

20 
 

2.   Key points: 

 Theft and Handling offences accounted for 33% of TNOs in FY15-16 

 The largest proportion of Theft and Handling offences in FY15-16 were Other Theft offences and 

Motor Vehicle Offences 

 A large proportion of Other Theft offences occurred in busy Town Centres or shopping districts, 

peaking mainly at weekends between 13:00hrs and 19:00hrs 

 Theft of Motor Vehicle is one of the three Crime types where the borough did not reach the 20% 

MOPAC reduction target.  

 Theft of Motor Vehicle had a 21% increase and in FY15-16 the borough had the 5th highest rate in 

London and analysis indicates levels may remain high.  

 32% of Theft of Motor Vehicle offences occurred overnight, Monday to Friday between 17:00hrs 

and 09:00hrs. Mopeds, Scooters and Motorcycles were mainly targeted. 

 Theft From Motor Vehicle offences accounted for 20% of Theft and Handling offences and had the 

2nd highest rate in London.  

 63% of Theft From Motor Vehicle offences occurred on the same day between 09:00hrs and 

21:00hrs, Monday to Friday. Main method of entry was smashing a window (31%). 

 Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference has seen a 33% increase since FY14-15 but also 

significant increases since FY10-11 (103%). Analysis indicates this may continue to rise over the next 

few years. 

 Majority of Motor Vehicle Tampering and Interference occurred on the same day between 17:00hrs 

and 18:00hrs and again between 00:00hrs and 01:00hrs, mainly between Saturday and Monday. 

Most vehicles targeted were Mopeds, Scooters and Motorcycles  

 

Recommendations: 

 Problem profile to be created on Motor Vehicle Crime to ascertain hotspots, perpetrators and 

victims 

 Awareness Campaigns for Moped, Scooter and Motorcycle users in relation to Motor Vehicle Crime 

Page 83



 

21 
 

VIOLENCE 
Violence with Injury (VWI) offences have seen a significant increase since FY11-12 of 24% and a 12% 

increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16. This increase has been experienced across London, possibly 

due to emphasis by Police on ensuring that calls around violence are crimed, but also due to the 

change in classficiation of “serious wounding”.  

Serious wounding offences saw a 25% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16. The below chart 

indicates that the volume of VWI offences may continue to rise if there is no intervention, but it does 

need to be noted that Domestic Violence Related offences are also included in this category: 

 

NON DOMESTIC VIOLENCE WITH INJURY 
 

For Non Domestic Violence With Injury offences, the borough has seen a 14% increase between 

FY14-15 and FY15-16 and has the 11th highest rate out of 32 boroughs. 

Page 84



 

22 
 

 
 
For Non Domestic Violence with Injury offences: 

 Offences were fairly consistent between 18:00hrs and 01:00hrs, peaking slightly between 
00:00hrs and 01:00hrs. 

 Majority have occurred between Friday and Sunday 

 4% were reported in close proximity to a Licenced Premises. 

 No peak month could be identified as offences occurred throughout the year. 

 49% of the injuries received by victims were described as “minor”. 8% were described as 
moderate, 4% were serious and 6% received no injury.  

 

YOUTH VIOLENCE 
 

For an offence to be classed as “Youth Violence” or “Serious Youth Violence”, the victim must be 

aged between 1 and 19 years old. The offence count is based on victims, as opposed to number 

of offences. Youth violence looks at Assault with Injury, Most Serious Violence, Knife Crime and 

Gun Crime. Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw an 8% increase in Youth Violence. 

Although comparitvely speaking, it is the fourth lowest volume in London, it does rank 17th 

highest rate of the London boroughs4.  

                                                                 
4
 Rate worked out using Census 2011 data for those aged 0-19 years old in each borough. 

Page 85



 

23 
 

 

 

Offences in the past have tended to peak between May and July and again between October and 

January: 

 

Serious Youth Violence is determined where the victim is aged between 1 and 19 and is a victim of 

Most Serious Violence, Gun crime and knife crime. Serious Youth Violence has remained steady over 

the past two financial years, with not much change (n101 in FY14-15 and n103 in FY15-16).  

Page 86



 

24 
 

 

GANG RELATED VIOLENCE 
In January 2016 the Home Office launched a refreshed approach to Gangs titled “Ending Gang 

Violence and Exploitation”. A Gang is defined as “A relatively durable, predominantly street-based 

group of young people who; 

 See themselves (and are seen by others) as a discernible group, and 

 Engage in a range of criminal activity and violence 
 

They may also have any or all of the following factors: 

 Identify with or lay claim over territory 

 Have some form of identifying structural feature 

 Are in conflict with other, similar, gangs5” 
 

The Partnership is currently drafting a Gangs Strategy to respond to those who are involved in or at 

risk of Gangs, including becoming both a pepetrator and a victim of Gang related crime. This does 

not only include violent crime, but also includes the issue of “county lines”, where an individual aids 

the transportation of drugs to a different area. 

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 26% reduction in the number of Gang Flagged offences 

in the borough (n19 to n14). In FY14-15, the majority of Gang Flagged offences were classed as 

Violence or Robbery (63%) and this remained the case in FY15-16 (71%). More research and analysis 

is required in this area in order to fully understand the issue in Hammersmith and Fulham. 

AMBULANCE CALL OUTS 
Compared to FY10-11, there was a 49% reduction in the number of Assault related ambulance call 

outs in FY15-16. When compared to FY14-15, there was a 15% increase in the number of call outs: 

                                                                 
5
 Centre for Social Justice, Dying to belong, London: Centre for Social Justice, 2009   

Page 87



 

25 
 

 

When compared to other London boroughs for FY15-16, the borough ranks 16th highest rate per 

thousand population: 

 

The majority of calls in FY15-16 were in relation to Other Serious Injury assaults (60%) followed by 

Minor Assaults (34%). Although this is similar to FY14-15, the proportions for Other Serious Injury for 

all call outs is higher than in FY14:15: 

Year 
Gun 
Injury 

Knife Injury Minor Assault Other Serious Injury Sexual Attack 

FY14-15 2 31 261 335 6 

FY15-16 1 35 246 441 9 

% change -50% 13% -6% 32% 50% 

 

 Peak times for call outs in FY15-16 was between 17:00hrs and 02:00hrs 

 Peak days for call outs in FY15-16 were Saturdays and Sundays 

Page 88



 

26 
 

 For FY15-16, the majority of call outs were for male patients (62%) and most patients were 

aged between 20 and 29 years old (27%) or 50 years old and over (20%). 

 Hammersmith Broadway and Shepherd’s Bush Green ranked highest of the wards for rate of 

call outs per thousand population, which may be due to being busy town centres which have 

a high footfall: 

Ward FY15-16 Total 
rate per 

thousand pop 
rank 

Hammersmith Broadway 109 9.7 1 

Shepherd's Bush Green 99 9.2 2 

College Park and Old Oak 53 7.1 3 

Wormholt and White City 63 5.6 4 

Askew 58 4.9 5 

Sands End 41 4.5 6 

Fulham Broadway 46 3.8 7 

Addison 48 3.4 8 

Ravenscourt Park 38 3.3 9 

North End 34 3.1 10 

Fulham Reach 33 3.1 11 

Town 35 2.7 12 

Avonmore and Brook Green 28 2.5 13 

Parsons Green and Walham 25 1.9 14 

Palace Riverside 14 1.1 15 

Munster 8 0.7 16 

  

Page 89



 

27 
 

 

  

Key Points: 

 Violence with Injury (VWI) offences have seen a significant increase since FY11-12 of 

24% and a 12% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16, however this does include 

Domestic Violence with Injury 

 Serious wounding offences saw a 25% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 Non Domestic Violence With Injury offences  has seen a 14% increase between FY14-

15 and FY15-16 and has the 11th highest rate out of 32 boroughs. 

 Offences were fairly consistent between 18:00hrs and 01:00hrs, peaking slightly 

between 00:00hrs and 01:00hrs, with peak days of Fridays and Sundays. 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw an 8% increase in Youth Violence 

 Serious Youth Violence has remained steady over the past two financial years, with 

not much change (n101 in FY14-15 and n103 in FY15-16). 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 26% reduction in the number of Gang 

Flagged offences 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 15% increase in the number of assault 

related ambulance call outs 

 16th highest rate per thousand population for ambulance assault call outs in London 

for FY15-16. 

 Hammersmith Broadway and Shepherd’s Bush Green ranked highest of the wards for 

rate of call outs 

 

Recommendations: 

 Should remain a priority for the borough 

 Problem profile to identify key hotspots, victims and perpetrators 

 Partnership should develop the Gangs Strategy with a profile looking at Gang related 

activity ain the borough and Group Violence. 

 Partnership to develop the Scoring Assessment for Violence Vulnerability (SAVVY) tool 

to identify individuals at risk from Gang Activity 

 Consider using A&E data under the Information Sharing to Tackle Violence Project 

 

Page 90



 

28 
 

BURGLARY 
The borough experienced an 8% increase in relation to Burglary offences between FY14-15 and 
FY15-16. This is the 2nd highest increase in all London Boroughs: 
 

 
 
The Borough also has the 19th highest rate out of all London Boroughs for FY15-16: 
 

 
 
 
Burglay in a Dwelling accounts for the majority of Burglary offences, accounting for 66% of Burglary 
offences in FY15-16: 

Page 91



 

29 
 

 
 

 
Ravenscourt Park saw the highest rate of Burglary Dwelling offences in FY15-16, followed by Askew 
and Town had the lowest rate. In relation to Burglary Other offences, Shepherd’s Bush Green and 
Hammersmith Broadway had the highest rates, with Palace Riverside once again having the lowest 
rate: 
 

Ward Ward Name 
Per thousand 

Household 
Burglary 
Dwelling 

BD 
rate rank 

Burglary 
Other 

BO 
rate rank 

Addison 11.518 75 6.5 4 31 2.7 8 

Askew 14.16 103 7.3 2 28 2.0 14 

Avonmore and Brook Green 12.216 58 4.7 14 36 2.9 7 

College Park and Old Oak 9.175 57 6.2 5 38 4.1 4 

Fulham Broadway 10.996 67 6.1 6 41 3.7 5 

Fulham Reach 11.306 55 4.9 13 23 2.0 13 

Hammersmith Broadway 11.923 62 5.2 9 58 4.9 2 

Munster 11.004 59 5.4 8 27 2.5 10 

North End 11.589 45 3.9 15 25 2.2 12 

Palace Riverside 7.483 38 5.1 10 10 1.3 16 

Parsons Green and Walham 10.813 53 4.9 12 50 4.6 3 

Ravenscourt Park 10.785 104 9.6 1 33 3.1 6 

Sands End 12.76 64 5.0 11 28 2.2 11 

Shepherd's Bush Green 12.175 81 6.7 3 65 5.3 1 

Town 11.201 38 3.4 16 30 2.7 9 

Wormholt and White City 13.389 77 5.8 7 21 1.6 15 

 
  Key Points: 

 8% increase in relation to Burglary offences between FY14-15 and FY15-16. This is the 2nd highest 

increase in all London Boroughs 

 Burglay in a Dwelling accounts for the majority of Burglary offences, accounting for 66% of Burglary 

offences in FY15-16 

 Ravenscourt Park had the highest rate for Burglary Dwelling in FY15-16 and Shepherd’s Bush Green with 

Hammersmith Broadway had the highest rate for Burglary Other 

Recommendations: 

 Problem profile for Burglary to be carried out to identify hotspots, property stolen, victims and 

perpetrators 

Page 92



 

30 
 

 

PREVENT 
The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities to have due 

regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism, known as “Prevent Duty”. 

Local Authorities are included in Schedule 6 of the Act. 

One of the fulfilments of this duty is that frontline practitioners are trained in how to identify the 

potential early indicators of possible exploitation or manipulation of a vulnerable individual towards 

terrorism and signpost where they can seek help and advice. The Local Authority Prevent Team 

delivers workshops to raise awareness of Prevent to frontline practitioners, partners, community 

members and third sector groups. The Local Authority Prevent Team also delivers training to 

practitioners in educational institutions.  

The Local Authority Prevent Team work closely with Police colleagues from the Counter Terrorist 

Command (SO15) and other multi-agency partners to mitigate the risk of Prevent related harm and 

safeguard those local individuals and institutions whom may be vulnerable to radicalisation or 

extremism. The Local Authority administers and chairs the local Channel Panel. Channel is the 

government’s intervention programme which sits alongside the Prevent Strategy and is an early 

intervention, multi-agency safeguarding process 

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS (VAWG) 
The UN defines VAWG as “any act of gender based violence that is directed at a woman because she 

is a woman, or acts of violence which are suffered disproportionately by women6”. This brings 

together eight strands; Domestic Violence, Sexual Violence, Stalking, Trafficking for Sexual 

Exploitation, Prostitution, Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), Forced Marriage and crimes said to be 

committed in the name of “honour”.  

Between FY14-15 and FY15-16 there was a 7% increase in reported Domestic Abuse offences and a 

7% increase in Domestic Abuse Violence with Injury offences. However, when looking at long term 

trends, between FY11-12 and FY15-16 there has been a 16% increase in the number of Domestic 

Abuse Incidents and a 52% increase in reported Domestic Violence with Injury offences. This is a 

picture which has also been seen nationally. There are a number of reasons that could be attributed 

to this; the number of calls to police in relation to Domestic Violence With Injury incidents to being 

reported as crimes, and the change in legislation making stalking a criminal offence. The below chart  

demonstrates potential trends for reporting based on previous financial year reporting, and 

demonstrates the volumes that may be experienced by the borough: 

                                                                 
6
 “The way Forward: Taking Action to end violence against women and girls”, Mayor of London 2010-13 

Page 93



 

31 
 

 

The chart below shows how the borough compares to other London boroughs. Based on FY15-16, 

the borough has the 16th highest rate in London: 

 

Figures have not taken into account repeat victims or repeat perpetrators, nor does it take into 

account the relationship between victim and perpetrator. In order to understand the issue around 

Domestic Violence with Injury fully, it is a recommendation that a profile be compiled to explore 

these issues.  

The below chart indicates that more prominent months for Domestic Violence With Injury offences 

tend to be between the summer months of June to August, but also peak slightly again at Christmas 

time, which is reflective of figures for the whole of London: 

Page 94



 

32 
 

 

Partnership response: 

In July 2015, the shared services in relation to VAWG was launched in Hammersmith and Fulham, 

working in partnership with Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and with Westminster City 

Council, to provide a new Integrated Support Service to victims of Domestic Abuse and Violence and 

co-ordinate services such as the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conferences. In FY15-16, 

Hammersmith and Fulham MARAC heard 310 high risk domestic abuse cases, a 29% increase from 

those heard in FY14-15 (240).  

 

 

  

  

Key Points: 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 7% increase in both Domestic Abuse incidents 

and Domestic Violence with Injury offences. 

 Between FY11-12 and FY15-16 there has been a 16% increase in the number of 

Domestic Abuse Incidents and a 52% increase in reported Domestic Violence with 

Injury offences 

 Based on FY15-16, the borough has the 16th highest rate in London 

 The LBHF MARAC saw a 29% increase in referrals between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

Recommendations: 

 A profile to be completed on Domestic Abuse to identify victims, perpetrators and 

relationship between the two. 

Page 95



 

33 
 

HATE CRIME 
Hate crime is defined as ‘any criminal offence which is perceived, by the victim or any other person, 

to be motivated by hostility or prejudice towards someone based on a personal characteristic.’ This 

common definition was agreed in 2007 by the police, Crown Prosecution Service, Prison Service 

(now the National Offender Management Service) and other agencies that make up the criminal 

justice system. There are five centrally monitored strands of hate crime:  

 race or ethnicity 

 religion or beliefs 

 sexual orientation 

 disability 

 transgender identity 

Since FY10-11, Hate Crime offences have seen an increase and the borough has experienced a 

significant number of Racist and Religious Hate Crime Offences, seeing a 51% increase in the number 

of incidents reported. This is similar to what has been experienced MET wide, which has seen a 61% 

increase7 for the same period. Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw a 16% increase in 

Racist and Religious Hate Crime: 

 

For FY15-16, the borough ranked 7th highest for the total of Homophobic, Racist and Religious, 

Disability and Faith Hate Crime out of the London Boroughs: 

                                                                 
7
 Obtained from London Data store 12/06/16: http://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/metropolitan-police-service-

recorded-crime-figures-and-associated-data 

Page 96



 

34 
 

 

 

Hate Crime within the borough tends to peak during the Summer Months but also between October 

and January. In October to December 2015 the Borough saw a significant increase compared to the 

average: 

 

 

According to the Hate Crime Dashboard8, for FY15-16: 

 The majority of victims of Hate Crime are male (57%) 

 The majority of victims are Black (33%), White European (22%) or Asian (21%). 11% are 

unknown ethnicity. 

 The majority of victims are aged between 25 and 34 years old (34%). 
                                                                 
8
 https://www.london.gov.uk/WHAT-WE-DO/mayors-office-policing-and-crime-mopac/data-and-

research/crime/hate-crime-dashboard 

Page 97



 

35 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Key Points: 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, the borough saw a 16% increase in Racist and 

Religious Hate Crime 

 For FY15-16, the borough ranked 7th highest for the total of Homophobic, Racist and 

Religious, Disability and Faith Hate Crime out of the London Boroughs 

Recommendation: 

 A profile be completed on Hate Crime in order to ascertain why Racist and Religious 

Hate Crime has seen a significant increase, identify victims and perpetrators. 

Page 98



 

36 
 

 

CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION 
In March 2015, the Police and Crime Committee of the London Assembly published “Confronting 

Child Sexual Exploitation in London” after raised awareness of Child Sexual Exploitation from various 

high profile investigations such as Professor Alexis Jay’s report, “The Independent Inquiry into child 

sexual exploitation in Rotherham (the Jay Report)”9.  

In FY15-16, 31 police investigations were created in Hammersmith and Fulham where concerns were 

raised about a child or children who may be subject to sexual exploitation; even when no actual 

allegation of crime is made or offence had been alleged. This is a 107% increase on the number of 

police investigations opened in FY14-15 (n15).  

In March 2016 Ofsted published a report in relation to an inspection of the service, rating the 

borough as “good” and stated that those at “risk of being sexually exploited are known and well 

supported10”.  It also stated that “there is a robust and well-coordinated response to children at risk 

of experiencing child sexual exploitation”. The borough works in partnership with Westminster City 

Council and Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, and the report recognises that information 

sharing between the three is swift and effective.  

 

Cases where there are risks of Child Sexual Exploitation are referred to the Multi Agency Sexual 

Exploitation Panel, where cases are then reviewed and ensure action is taken by whichever agency is 

involved with the individual case. 

 

                                                                 
9
 Alexis Jay OBE, Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Exploitation in Rotherham 1997-2013, August 2014 

10
 

http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/hammersmith_and_fulha
m/052_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children's%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB
%20as%20pdf.pdf 
 

Page 99

http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/hammersmith_and_fulham/052_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children's%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/hammersmith_and_fulham/052_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children's%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/hammersmith_and_fulham/052_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children's%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf


 

37 
 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
POLICE CALLS 
There has been a 20% reduction in the number of calls made to Police for Anti Social Behaviour 

between FY13-14 and FY15-16 (n6477 to n5146). The majority of calls over the three Financial Years 

were in relation to Rowdy or Inconsiderate Behaviour:  

Category 
FY13-

14 
FY14-

15 
FY15-

16 
Difference FY13-

14 to FY15-16 
Difference FY14-

15 to FY15-16 

Animal Problems 54 35 22 -59% -37% 

Begging 257 421 417 62% -1% 

Fireworks 97 105 83 -14% -21% 

Litter / Drug Paraphernalia 36 23 5 -86% -78% 

Malicious Communications / hoax 
calls 190 46 52 -73% 13% 

Noise 591 665 635 7% -5% 

Prostitute Related Activity 21 7 12 -43% 71% 

Rowdy or Inconsiderate Behaviour 3830 3088 2846 -26% -8% 

Rowdy or Nuisance Neighbours 921 811 684 -26% -16% 

Street Drinking 30 53 47 57% -11% 

Trespass 102 93 39 -62% -58% 

Vehicle Abandoned - Not Stolen 93 59 56 -40% -5% 

Vehicle Nuisance 255 272 248 -3% -9% 

Total 6477 5678 5146 -21% -9% 

 

Although Rowdy or Inconsiderate behaviour has seen an 8% reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-

16, it acounted for 55% of all calls to police and over the three year period, accounted for 56% of all 

calls received.  

Rowdy or Nuisance Neighbours accounted for 13% of police call outs in FY15-16 despite a 16% 

reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-16. Over the three year period it accounted for 14% of calls to 

police. 

Noise Nuisance also accounted for 12% of call outs in FY15-16, despite a 5% reduction between 

FY14-15 and FY15-16. Over the three year period it accounted for  11% of calls to police. 

Of note: Malicious Communications / Hoax calls saw a significant reduction between FY13-14 and 

FY15-16. This is due to changes in classification of Anti-Social behaviour by the police. From FY14-15 

Malicious Communications ceased to be classified, however elements such as Hoax Calls to 

emergency services were classified separately. Since April 2015, some offences previously not 

classed as notifiable have been included as part of harassment owing to amendments to the 

Malicious Communications Act (1988) and to Section 127 of the Communications Act 200311. 

The chart below shows that calls to the police in relation to ASB peak during the Summer months: 

                                                                 
11

 
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/
yearendingseptember2015#anti-social-behaviour 

Page 100



 

38 
 

 

REACT 
ReACT is a system used by the council to record ASB issues. The total number of ASB incidents 

recorded on ReACT has fallen since FY12-13. Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 16% 

reduction in the number of reported incidents: 

 

ReACT measures seriousness of incidents, with Grade 1 being the most serious. The table below 

shows that the proportion of most serious incidents has reduced between FY12-13 and FY15-16, 

whereas Grade 2 incidents have seen a slight increase since FY12-13. 

Financial Year Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 (blank) Grand Total 

FY12-13 13% 13% 73% 0% 1% 829 

FY13-14 9% 18% 71% 1% 2% 727 

FY14-15 12% 14% 72% 1% 1% 587 

FY15-16 9% 19% 69% 0% 3% 496 

Grand Total 284 416 1884 15 40 2639 

 
In relation to type of incidents reported, Noise incidents have made up a large proportion of calls 
made between FY12-13 and FY15-16 and made up 25% of calls made in FY15-16, despite seeing a 7% 

Page 101



 

39 
 

reduction from 136 incidents in FY14-15 to 126 incidents in FY15-16. Verbal Abuse also made up a 
large proportion of calls between FY12-13 and FY15-16, accounting for 18% of calls in FY15-16 
despite a slight reduction between FY14-15 and FY15-16 of 4%. 
 
Drug / Substance misuse saw a slight increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 of 2%, and accounted 
for 10% of calls received in FY15-16, despite offences seeing a 14% reduction for the same time 
period. Misuse of communal areas also accounted for 10% of calls received in FY15-16 
 

Row Labels FY12-13 FY13-14 FY14-15 FY15-16 

% change 
FY14-15 

and FY15-
16 

Alcohol Related 8 5 5 4 -20% 

Criminal Behaviour/Crime 37 32 39 20 -49% 

Domestic Abuse 1 1 2 0 -100% 

Drugs/Substance Misuse/Drug Dealing 64 93 49 50 2% 

Garden Nuisance 19 12 13 4 -69% 

Hate-Related Incidents 5 5 4 7 75% 

Homophobic Harassment 7 3 3 3 0% 

Litter/Rubbish/Fly-Tipping 48 45 30 28 -7% 

Misuse of Communal Areas/Public Space or Loitering 99 93 78 50 -36% 

Noise 221 189 136 126 -7% 

not disclosed 58 54 46 54 17% 

Nuisance from Vehicles 6 2 5 3 -40% 

Pets and Animal Nuisance 51 41 31 18 -42% 

Physical Violence 28 16 25 20 -20% 

Prostitution/Sexual Acts/Kerb Crawling 4 1 4 3 -25% 

Racial Harassment 27 13 11 7 -36% 

Vandalism and Damage to Property 28 29 13 10 -23% 

Verbal Abuse/Harassment/Intimidation/Threat 
Behaviour 118 93 93 89 -4% 

 
The table below shows ASB incidents reported on ReACT by electoral ward (where noted). For FY15-
16, Wormholt and White City had the highest rate of incidents, as well as highest volume of 
incidents, followed by Shepherd’s Bush Green and North End. Ravenscourt Park and Addison and 
Parson’s Green & Walham had the lowest rates of ASB incidents: 
 

Ward FY14-15 FY15-16 change 
rate per 1000 pop FY15-

16 

Addison 34 11 -68% 1.0 

Askew 32 34 6% 2.4 

Avonmore & Brook Green 36 14 -61% 1.1 

College Park & Old Oak 8 11 38% 1.2 

Fulham Broadway 16 20 25% 1.8 

Fulham Reach 61 38 -38% 3.4 

Hammersmith Broadway 23 26 13% 2.2 

Munster 13 21 62% 1.9 

North End 50 53 6% 4.6 

Palace Riverside 28 10 -64% 1.3 

Page 102



 

40 
 

Parson’s Green & Walham 11 11 0% 1.0 

Ravenscourt Park 23 8 -65% 0.7 

Sand’s End 36 39 8% 3.1 

Shepherds Bush Green 58 71 22% 5.8 

Town 36 27 -25% 2.4 

Wormholt & White City 114 88 -23% 6.6 

 
Peak months for incidents are between April to October, with fewer incidents occuring during the 
winter months: 
 

 
 

 
 

UNIFORM 
In FY15-16 there was a total of 7594 incidents of noise nuisance recorded on Uniform, which is a 
10% reduction from FY14-15. Domestic noise incidents made up a large proportion of incidents 
reported throughout the three year period, accounting for 49% of incidents reported in FY15-16 but 
has seen a 22% reduction from FY14-15. Noisy parties also made up a large proportion of incidents 
reported throughout the three year period, accounting for 19% of calls in FY15-16 and saw a 90% 
increase from FY14-15. Construction noise accounted for 10% of incidents reported in FY15-16 and 
saw a 13% increase: 
  

Page 103



 

41 
 

 
 

Category FY13-14 FY14-15 FY15-16 

% change 
FY14-15 

and 
FY15-16 

Proportion 
of calls 

FY15-16 

Domestic Noise 3842 4766 3727 -22% 63% 

Noisy Party 597 779 1480 90% 10% 

Construction Noise 659 987 741 -25% 13% 

Premises Alarm Noise 349 370 341 -8% 5% 

Entertainment Noise 286 443 277 -37% 6% 

Commercial Noise 305 394 298 -24% 5% 

Dog Barking 268 315 304 -3% 4% 

Noise in Street 106 132 255 93% 2% 

Car Alarm Noise 90 124 100 -19% 2% 

Noise General 49 86 51 -41% 1% 

Transport Noise 33 12 20 67% 0% 

 
Most incidents reported in FY15-16 occurred at the weekends, with peak months of February to July. 
2015 saw a spike during May to July 2015 which was much higher than the average for the past 
three years: 
 

 
 

 
4.1 Confirm 

40367 incidents reported on Confirm in FY15-16, which is a 9% increase compared to FY14-15 
(n36933). The majority of incidents reported were in relation to Flytipping (34% of incidents 
reported in FY15-16 and highest volume). Flytipping also saw a 34% increase between FY14-15 and 
FY15-16.  
 

Page 104



 

42 
 

Graffiti also accounted for 5% of incidents reported during FY15-16 and saw an 19% increase 
between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 5% of Graffiti incidents were in relation to Racist Graffiti. Abandoned 
Article also saw a significant increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16, seeing a rise of 76%.  
 
Trade Waste saw an 82% increase between FY14-15 and Skips / Building material saw a 11% 
increase. Flyposting has also seen a significant reduction of 55% but still remains high volume. The 
table below shows the data held on some of the categories in Confirm: 
 
 

Category FY14-15 FY15-16 % change 

proportion 
of 

incidents 
FY15-16 

Fly-tipping 11240 13841 23% 34.3% 

Missed Collection 5261 6309 20% 16% 

Graffiti 1484 1766 19% 4.4% 

Litter 1302 1372 5% 3.4% 

Flyposting 2211 999 -55% 2.5% 

Dog fouling 599 712 19% 1.8% 

Abandoned Article 183 322 76% 0.8% 

Bin / Bin lids not replace or damaged 195 269 38% 0.7% 

Abandoned Trollies 71 186 162% 0.5% 

Receptacles 302 136 -55% 0.3% 

Container Overflowing 69 129 87% 0.3% 

Dog Order 116 112 -3% 0.3% 

Trade Waste 45 82 82% 0.2% 

Glass 45 54 20% 0.1% 

Spillage 60 54 -10% 0.1% 

Smart Bank Overflowing 30 49 63% 0.1% 

Contamination 3 25 733% 0.1% 

 
Flytipping: 
 
The chart below shows that there were significantly more incidents of flytipping reported June and 
between September and October 2015. For most months, incidents reported in FY15-16 were 
significantly higher than the average for the past four years. On average, June to August and October 
have seen peaks in relation to Flytipping, with peak days for the past four years being Tuesday and 
Wednesdays. 
 

Page 105



 

43 
 

 
 
Graffiti: 
 
Graffiti saw an 19% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16, with reports in FY15-16 being 
significantly higher than the average for June 2014 and January 2015 to February. On average key 
days have been Monday to Friday. 
 

 
 
 

Fly-posting: 
 
The chart below shows that there were significantly less incidents of fly-posting reported between 
June and August and for most months remained significantly lower than the average for the past 
four years. On average, February, April and October have seen peaks in relation to Fly-posting, 

Page 106



 

44 
 

whereas last year it peaked higher than the average in December. Peak days on average for the past 
four years were Tuesday to Thursday. 

 
 

  

Key points: 

 Rowdy or Inconsiderate Behaviour ASB accounted for 55% of all calls to police in FY15-16, Rowdy or 

Nuisance Neighbours accounted for 13% and Noise accounted for 12% of call outs. Incidents tend to 

peak in the summer months 

 Between FY14-15 and FY15-16, there was a 16% reduction in the number of reported incidents to the 

council system ReACT 

 Noise incidents have made up a large proportion of calls made between FY12-13 and FY15-16 and 

made up 25% of calls made in FY15-16 

 Verbal Abuse also made up a large proportion of calls between FY12-13 and FY15-16, accounting for 

18% 

 There was a 10% reduction in reported noise incidents on Uniform between FY14-15 and FY15-16. 

 Domestic noise incidents made up a large proportion of incidents reported throughout the three year 

period, accounting for 49% of incidents reported in FY15-16 

 There was a 19% reduction in incidents reported on Confirm between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 The majority of incidents reported were in relation to Flytipping (34% of incidents reported in FY15-16 

and highest volume).  

 Graffiti saw an 19% increase between FY14-15 and FY15-16 

 Flyposting has also seen a significant reduction of 55% but still remains high volume. 
 

Recommendations 

 A profile to be completed in relation to ASB to determine repeat callers 

 Predictive mapping to be considered for Environmental Crime to aid direction of resources 

Page 107



 

45 
 

ADULT AND YOUTH REOFFENDING 
Since 2009-10 the actual number of offenders who reside in the Borough has fallen by 10% to a level 

of 2,024 in the 2013-14 cohort. This represents a rate of 11.3 offenders for every thousand 

population which is the 6th highest in London:  

 

Despite this reduction, the change in number of offenders is relatively low compared to most others 

in the country (ranking 80th lowest out of 319 local authorities, and 10th lowest out of all of the 

London boroughs). 

  2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

Offenders 2,257 2,220 2,056 2,091 2,024 

Reoffenders 633 644 621 631 596 

Reoffences 1,779 2,004 2,038 1,860 1,941 

 

In terms of type of offences the highest volume types occur in Summary Crimes, Theft, Summary 

Non-motoring and Other Crimes Against Society. Since 2008 the number of Public Order offences, 

Summary Non-motoring, Theft offences have all increased: 

Offence  2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
% Change 

since 
2009 

All 1779 2004 2038 1860 1941 9% 

Criminal Damage and Arson 3 6 9 2 9 200% 

Drug 308 366 246 280 282 -8% 

Fraud Crimes 14 13 27 29 3 -79% 

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society 120 173 165 84 114 -5% 

Other Crimes Against Society 496 667 566 445 521 5% 

Page 108



 

46 
 

Possession of Weapons 24 55 27 41 35 46% 

Public Order 44 73 128 40 90 105% 

Robbery 30 36 4 18 34 13% 

Sexual 1 6 1 1 14 1300% 

Summary Crimes 584 628 583 525 603 3% 

Summary Motoring 77 82 64 39 47 -39% 

Summary Non-motoring 507 546 519 486 556 10% 

Theft 598 616 809 795 722 21% 

Victim Based Crime 682 696 862 856 806 18% 

Violence Against the Person 50 32 39 40 27 -46% 

 

ADULT REOFFENDING 
Of all offenders in the 2013-14 cohort, 29.4% went on to reoffend in the following 12 months. This is 

the highest re-offending rate in London, and the 11th highest rate of all Local Authorities in England 

and Wales. 

This has be caused by a decrease in total number of offenders (-10% between 2009-10 and 2013-14) 

being offset by a smaller decrease in reoffenders (by 5.8% in the same period). 

There have also been increases in the number of actual re-offences committed. Between 2009-10 

and 2013-14, there was a 9.1% increase in the number of re-offences. 

 

 

 

The number of reoffenders has decreased from 633 in 2009-10 to 596 in 2013-14. The biggest 

number of reoffenders were for Theft offences (193), Summary Crimes (185) and Other Crimes 

Against Society (182). The below shows the number of offenders by offences: 

Page 109



 

47 
 

Offence Type 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
% Change 
since 2009 

All 633 644 621 631 596 -5.8% 

Criminal Damage and Arson 3 4 3 1 4 33.3% 

Drug 125 147 112 118 117 -6.4% 

Fraud Crimes 4 7 8 8 3 -25.0% 

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society 41 45 45 36 35 -14.6% 

Other Crimes 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 

Other Crimes Against Society 189 225 192 184 182 -3.7% 

Possession of Weapons 9 14 16 16 11 22.2% 

Public Order 14 19 19 14 19 35.7% 

Robbery 10 8 3 6 11 10.0% 

Sexual 1 3 1 1 5 400.0% 

Summary Crimes 227 209 211 198 185 -18.5% 

Summary Motoring 32 28 23 19 20 -37.5% 

Summary Non-motoring 195 181 188 179 165 -15.4% 

Theft 186 175 187 210 193 3.8% 

Victim Based Crime 212 203 210 240 224 5.7% 

Violence Against the Person 12 13 16 22 11 -8.3% 

 

The number of re-offences has increased by 9.1% from 1,779 in 2009-10 to 1,941 in 2013-14. There 

were increases in the number of public order offences, procession of weapons and theft offences. 

The below shows the number of re-offences: 

  

Offence Type 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
% Change 
since 2009 

All 1779 2004 2038 1860 1941 9.1% 

Criminal Damage and Arson 3 6 9 2 9 200.0% 

Drug 308 366 246 280 282 -8.4% 

Fraud Crimes 14 13 27 29 3 -78.6% 

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society 120 173 165 84 114 -5.0% 

Other Crimes 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 

Other Crimes Against Society 496 667 566 445 521 5.0% 

Possession of Weapons 24 55 27 41 35 45.8% 

Public Order 44 73 128 40 90 104.5% 

Robbery 30 36 4 18 34 13.3% 

Sexual 1 6 1 1 14 1300.0% 

Summary Crimes 584 628 583 525 603 3.3% 

Summary Motoring 77 82 64 39 47 -39.0% 

Summary Non-motoring 507 546 519 486 556 9.7% 

Theft 598 616 809 795 722 20.7% 

Victim Based Crime 682 696 862 856 806 18.2% 

Page 110



 

48 
 

Violence Against the Person 50 32 39 40 27 -46.0% 

 

YOUTH REOFFENDING 
 

Since 2005-06 the number of youth offenders has decreased by 62.0% from 355 in 2005-06 to 135 in 

2013-14. Similarly the number of re-offenders have also decreased by 57.4% from 136 in 2005-06 to 

58 in 2013-14. However the re-offending rate has increased over the same time period: 

 

 

 

 

In 2013-14 43.0% of offenders went on to reoffend in the following 12 months. This is the 17th 

highest rate in London. Since 2008/09 the reoffending rate has increased from 35.4 to 43.0 in 2012-

13. This has mainly be caused by a the fact that the cohort of offenders has decreased more than the 

cohort of reoffenders over the same time period (62.7% compared to 54.7% respectively). 

 

  

Youth Offending 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change

Number of offenders  in cohort 355 391 391 362 281 239 175 161 135 -62.0%

Number of re-offenders 136 161 142 128 119 117 76 76 58 -57.4%

Number of re-offences 348 416 409 322 325 360 250 240 161 -53.7%

Page 111



 

49 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Key points: 

 6th highest rate of Adult offenders in London 

 Lowest reduction in number of offenders, ranking 49th lowest out of 325 Local Authorities 

ad 5th lowest of London Boroughs 

 30.5% of Adult offenders went on to reoffend in the following 12 months, the 11th highest 

rate of all Local Authorities 

 Increase of 2.4% of re-offences committed by Adults, whereas London and nationally there 

had been a reduction 

 Increase in number of Adult re-offenders 

 Number of Youth offenders has reduced by 54.6% since FY05-06 

 47.2% of Youth offenders re-offended within 12 months. This is the 2nd highest rate in 

London and 12th highest nationally.  

Recommendations: 

 Adult and Youth offending should remain a priority for the Partnership 

 Use of predictive modelling to identify individuals most at risk of re-offending 

Page 112



 

50 
 

NEIGHBOURHOOD CONFIDENCE AND CRIME COMPARATOR 

TOOL12: 

This tool provides crime and public perception data measured by the MPS / MOPAC Public Attitude 

Survey. It is a ‘rolling-survey’ that is carried out continuously throughout the year and reported on 

quarterly. It asks a sample of the public a number of questions about their experiences and 

perceptions of crime. Although this tool gives data for “North Hammersmith” and “South Fulham”, 

an average has been taken from the response for both to give an overall percentage. 

In the latest data set for January 2014 – December 2015, some highlights include: 

 79% of respondents believed that police understood the issues that affected the community 

 77% of respondents believed that police were dealing with the things that matter to the 

people in the community 

 90% of respondents thought that there was low ASB disorder in the borough and 82% were 

not worried about ASB in the borough. 

 88% felt safe walking alone in the borough 

 64% believed the police dealt with drug dealing effectively. 

 75% were not very worried or worried at all by crime in the borough. 

 

                                                                 
12

 https://www.london.gov.uk/webmaps/neighbourhoodconfidencetool/ 

Recommendations: 

 Partnership carry out a Crime Survey of residents to capture resident satisfaction 

Page 113



 

51 
 

  

POLICY LANDSCAPE 
 

Smarter Budgeting 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham have announced Delivery Plan priorities for 2016/17 
follow the outcomes set out in the new “Smarter Budgeting” programme.  Smarter Budgeting is a 
corporate outcomes-based budgeting transformation initiative which seeks to better apportion 
budgets and activities/services to achieve improved outcomes for residents.   
 
Social inclusion, value for money and responsiveness to residents are at the heart of the programme 
and headline themes for deliverables in 2016/17 include: 

 Economic Growth 

 Best Start for Children in Life 

 Resident Involvement 

 Decent Homes 

 Reducing Homelessness 

 Supporting Vulnerable Adults 

 Safer and Healthier Place to live 

 Cleaner, Greener more Sustainable Borough 
 
Night time opening of the Underground Stations 

Originally planned to open in 2015, the Night Tube service is due to launch on 19th August 2016 on 
the Central and Victoria lines, with the Jubilee line, Northern line and Piccadilly line following in the 
Autumn. The British Transport Police (BTP) will provide more than 100 officers to patrol the 144 
stations that will be open throughout the night each weekend when the Night Tube services begin 
and will provide Police Community Support Officers to support officers as required.  
 
LBHF has two Piccadilly line stations and 3 Central line stations that will be part of this scheme. 
 
London Mayor Election 

In May 2016, Labour candidate Sadiq Khan became the London Mayor. In his Manifesto, some of the 
priorities he pledged to focus on include: 

 Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls 

 Zero Tolerance of domestic and sexual violence, working closely with public sector and 
voluntary sector organisations to develop better support for victims 

 Develop Cyber Security Strategy 

 Implement a Knife crime strategy, including focus on shops illegally selling knives and working on 
tougher community payback for those caught with knives 

 Work closely with Local Authorities, schools and youth services to develop anti-gang 
strategies 

 Focus on tackling extremism and radicalisation 

 Ensure Stop and Search is evidence based 

 Launch a portal so victims can track progress of crimes 

 Roll out Police body worn cameras across London 

 Appoint an independent Victims Commissioner 
 

Page 114



 

52 
 

Child Sexual Exploitation Definition Review 

In February 2016 the Government entered consultation about revising the statutory definition of 
Child Sexual Exploitation. The proposed changes are intended to remove any ambiguity and ensure 
that across all sectors practitioners are working to the same definition. The proposed definition is  
“Child sexual exploitation is a form of child abuse. It occurs where anyone under the age of 18 is 
persuaded, coerced or forced into sexual activity in exchange for, amongst other things, money, 
drugs/alcohol, gifts, affection or status. Consent is irrelevant, even where a child may believe they 
are voluntarily engaging in sexual activity with the person who is exploiting them. Child sexual 
exploitation does not always involve physical contact and may occur online.” The change in 
definition may affect the number of reports or referrals that are made in relation to Child Sexual 
Exploitation. 
 
 
Regeneration and Westfield Expansion 

Plans to expand Westfield in Shepherds Bush, creating thousands of new jobs and more than 1,300 
homes, were given the go-ahead by the council’s planning applications committee. Westfield London 
received outline planning permission to further expand its £1 billion development on land north of 
the shopping centre, including the White City Industrial Estate.  
 
Plans are to demolish existing buildings on the site and build new ones, ranging from two to 23 
storeys, with up to 1,347 new homes and 61,840sqm of shops, including anchor department store 
John Lewis. Westfield expects to begin building work this year with John Lewis and other new stores 
opening in time for Christmas 2017. The scheme will bring thousands of jobs to the area, including 
600 through the arrival of John Lewis.  
 
The consultation relating to High Speed 2 continues. The proposal would see a HS2 at Old Oak 
Common that would connect to Crossrail and the Great Western mainline; resulting in an increase of 
transport access in the area. The situation should be monitored to plan for any operational changes 
necessary to deal with new potential crime hotspots. As well as HS2, other policy areas in 
development include the A4 “flyunder” proposals, the redevelopment of the BBC site, and planning 
policy for traveller sites, and employment policy and business resilience. 
 
EU referendum  

On the 23rd June 2016 the public will vote on whether to stay in the European Union or not. The 
Government holds the stance that Britain should remain part of the European Union, however there 
are campaigners stating that Britain should leave. These “leave” campaigners are better known as 
“Brexit” supporters. The referendum is being held as part of the Conservatives’ 2015 Manifesto 
pledge. The implications of leaving or staying will affect a number of areas, including economics, 
security and immigration. 

Page 115



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS 
SERVICES POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

COMMITTEE 

 
28 Jun 2016 

 

 

REVIEW OF USE OF REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA)  
and CCTV 

Report of the: Deputy Leader Cllr Cartwright  
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All  
 

Accountable Directors:  Tasnim Shawkat Director of Law and David Page Director for 
Safer Neighbourhoods.  

Report Author: Janette Mullins, Principal Solicitor 
(Housing and Litigation) 
 
Andrew Stocker,  CCTV Development Manager  
  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2744 
E-mail: janette.mullins@lbhf.gov.uk  
Tel: 020 8753 2266 
Email: 
andrew.stocker@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. This is report is to give Members the opportunity to scrutinise the Council’s 

use of covert surveillance and CCTV. 
 

1.2. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a 
statutory framework for police and public authorities to use surveillance 
and communications data, where necessary and proportionate, for the 
purpose of preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder.  RIPA 
regulates the use of these powers in a manner that is compatible with the 
Human Rights Act. 

 
1.3. On 3 November 2014 the Cabinet gave approval to a Joint Working 

Agreement for the exercise of RIPA powers with the Royal Borough of 
Kensington & Chelsea including sharing officers.  It also gave approval to 
a joint policy on the use of surveillance powers including the use of 
surveillance not regulated by RIPA.  

 

Page 116

Agenda Item 9

mailto:janette.mullins@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.stocker@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. That Members review the use of surveillance by the Council.  

 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. The code of guidance published by the Secretary of State under section 
91 of RIPA advises that local authority Members should review the use of 
the Act and set the policy. 

 
 
4. THE REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000  

4.1. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) introduced a 
process for balancing an individual’s rights with the authority’s obligations 
to enforce laws on behalf of the wider community. The Act makes all 
conduct carried out in accordance with an authorisation granted under the 
terms of the Act lawful “for all purposes”.  Surveillance must be 
“necessary” and “proportionate” and be approved by both a council 
authorising officer and a magistrate. 
 

4.2. Councils use RIPA to undertake directed surveillance and access 
communication data to detect and prevent crimes such as fraud, rogue 
Traders and anti-social behaviour. Since November 2012  Councils must  
obtain an order from a JP (District Judge or lay magistrate) approving an 
authorisation to use directed surveillance, acquire communication data or 
use a CHIS.  

 
RIPA is separated into 2 parts: 
 
Part I Communications Data Access  

4.3. This allows Councils to access communications data from 
Communications Service Providers.  It does NOT allow for the interception 
of communications (i.e. it enables the Council to seek information as to 
who someone is phoning, not what they say). 
 

4.4. Communications Service Providers (CSP’s) are anyone who provides a 
postal or telecommunications service e.g. Royal Mail, British Telecom, 
Vodafone, etc. 
 

4.5. Councils’ only have the power to acquire the following data from CSP’s 

 Billing, delivery and installation address 

 Contact telephone numbers 

 Periods of subscription use 

 Itemised telephone call records 

 Itemised records of connections to internet services 

Page 117



 Provision, and use of forwarding/redirection services 

 Records of postal items, e.g. registered, recorded or special 

delivery postal items 

 Top up details for mobile phones, credit/debit card details and 

voucher top up details 

 
4.6. CSP’s will only respond to requests from Council’s via designated contacts 

who must have undertaken and passed a Home Office approved course.  
The Council uses NAFN (National anti-fraud network) as the designated 
contact. 

 
 Part II – Direct Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence Sources 

Directed Surveillance  

4.7. This refers to covert but, not intrusive, surveillance which is not an 
immediate response to events.  It is undertaken for a specific investigation 
or operation in a way likely to obtain private information about a person 
(any information relating to private or family life, interpreted broadly to 
include relationships with others). It must be necessary for the purpose of 
preventing or detecting crime or disorder and proportionate to what it 
seeks to achieve. 

 
4.8. Since November 2012 a Council can only authorise directed surveillance 

to prevent or detect criminal offences that are either punishable by at least 
6 months imprisonment or are related to the underage sale of various 
prohibited items.   This is known as the “crime threshold”. 

 

Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS)  

4.9. The practice of using an officer to establish or maintain a personal or other 
relationship with a person for the covert purpose of obtaining information, 
e.g. an officer who poses as a tenant to obtain information and evidence 
against a nuisance tenant. LBHF has never authorised the use of a CHIS.    

 
4.10. The Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) regulates Part II of RIPA.  

There was an inspection on 25 June 2013. It is likely that there will be an 
inspection this year. 

 
4.11. Frequency of use of these powers: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 118



 

Directed Surveillance:  
July 2014 – May 

2016 

   

Department: Authorising 

Officer  

Number of 

Applications 

Reason for 

use of RIPA  

Environment, 

Leisure and 

Residents 

Services: Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

Division 

Director for Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

15 Covert CCTV 

cameras and 

Visual 

Surveillance to 

identify 

perpetrators of 

ASB, criminal 

damage and 

drug dealing 

Environment, 

Leisure and 

Residents 

Services: Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

Division 

Director for Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

1 Covert  CCTV 

to investigate 

theft from 

parking meters 

Transport and 

Technical Services 

–Environmental 

health, Trading 

Standards 

Director for 
Environmental 
Health   
 

2 Trading 

standard 

investigation 

counterfeit 

goods 

 
 
Communication Data: 
 

Department Authorising 

Officer  

Number of 

applications 

Reason for 

use of RIPA 

Transport and 

Technical Services 

–Environmental 

health, Trading 

Standards 

Director for Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

2  Investigations 

into car 

clocking and 

fraud. 

 

 

The Policy 

4.12. The policy sets out how an investigating officer must apply for RIPA 
authorisation to one of five Authorising Officers.  The officer must set out 
the purpose of the investigation, the details of the operation (duration, 
methods, equipment and so on to be employed), the identities where 
known of the subject of the application, the  information  it is desired to  
obtain, the  offence to be prevented or detected, an explanation of why it is 
necessary, details of potential collateral intrusion (infringement of the 
privacy of people other than the intended subject) including precautions 
taken to avoid  collateral intrusion  and an explanation of why the 
application is proportionate to the aims of the operation. 

Page 119



 
4.13. The Authorising Officer is a senior person of at least Head of Service level, 

who is not connected with the operation.  He or she will consider the 
application and if satisfied that the requirements of the Act and the 
Council’s policy are met will authorise the application.  In doing so the 
Authorising Officer will record the who, where, what, when and how of the 
activity, set a date to review the operation.  The investigating officer will 
then apply to the Magistrates’ court for approval. 

Update of Policy  

4.14. The evolving use of social media has prompted officers to  examine the 
potential use of such forms of communication as blogging, Facebook and 
Twitter to  carry  out covert surveillance, either deliberately or 
unintentionally.  The Chief Surveillance Commissioner noted in his 2014  
report to Parliament that: 

“Perhaps more than ever, public authorities now make use of the wide 
availability of details about individuals, groups or locations that are 
provided on social networking sites and a myriad of other means of 
open communication between people using the Internet and their 
mobile communication devices. I repeat my view that just because this 
material is out in the open, does not render it fair game. The 
Surveillance Commissioners have provided guidance that certain 
activities will require authorisation under RIPA or RIP(S)A and this 
includes repetitive viewing of what are deemed to be “open source” 
sites for the purpose of intelligence gathering and data collation.” 

4.15. The joint policy has been updated to include guidance on the potential use 
of social media. 

4.16. In March 2016 joint training on RIPA was provided to officers of LBHF  and 
RBKC by ACTNOW a leading provider of training in this subject 

Non RIPA Surveillance 

4.17. The policy sets out the circumstances when officers may use surveillance 
techniques where the crime threshold is not met.  In such circumstances, 
by carefully considering exactly the same factors of necessity and 
proportionality which would be considered  before granting authorisation 
under RIPA,  the officers  can  show  that their activity is lawful and 
necessary in terms  of the qualification in Article  8(2) of European 
Convention of Human Rights 

4.18. Non-RIPA surveillance has been used by officers investigating anti-social 
behaviour, which can involve day to-to-day incidents such as vandalism, 
and noisy or abusive behaviour by neighbours.  Even what is perceived as 
‘low level’ anti-social behaviour, when targeted and persistent, can have a 
devastating effect on a victim.  In order to support victims it has been 
necessary to conduct surveillance that does not satisfy the serious crime 
threshold requirement of RIPA. Evidence gathered can then be used to 

Page 120



support enforcement action against the perpetrators of the ASB, including 
those that reside in RSL properties. 

4.19. Frequency of use:  
 

 
Department 

Authorising 

Officer  

Number of 

applications 

Reason  

Environment, 

Leisure and 

Residents 

Services: Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

Division 

Director for Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

31 Covert CCTV 

cameras and 

Visual 

Surveillance to 

identify 

perpetrators of 

ASB, criminal 

damage, 

harassment, 

intimidation 

and drug 

dealing 

 
5. CCTV SYSTEM  

 

5.1 The Public Space CCTV system in Hammersmith and Fulham continues to 

expand each year.  This growth is almost exclusively funded by planning 

gain income generated from the many construction developments within 

the Borough.    

 

5.2 In 2014 Hammersmith and Fulham operated 868 cameras and this 

number has increased to 1150 in 2016.  This includes both public space 

cameras and those covering housing estates. 

 
5.3 Over the last year (2015/16) we expanded and improved the camera 

network as follows:  

 
o 5 new public space CCTV cameras installed 

o 5 new housing estate schemes installed 

o 6 new housing estate scheme lift cameras installed 

o Duct network has extended to Fulham Court 

o Upgraded control system to IP 

o 17 new deployable cameras  

o 2 Neighbourhood Warden vehicles 

 
5.4 There are plans in 2016/17 to carry out further works including: 

o 5 new public space CCTV cameras 

o 10 upgraded public space CCTV cameras 

o 3 new housing estate schemes 

o 2 housing estate schemes upgraded 

Page 121



o 10 deployable cameras  

 
 

5.5 In 2014 6011 reports were made by CCTV operators.  1155 arrests were 

witnessed and 370 of those arrests  would not have happened without the 

CCTV operators proactively using the CCTV system to direct police to the 

crime scene.   

 

5.6 In 2015 a similar number of reports and arrests witnessed were recorded – 

(5892 reports and 1148 arrests) however the number of arrests occurring 

as a direct result of the CCTV operators role increased to 589.   

 
5.7 In 2015, therefore, 589 people were arrested in Hammersmith and Fulham 

that would not have been without the CCTV operators working jointly with 

the Met Police. 

 

5.8 One of the reasons for the increase is the improved resolution the 

operators have across the Borough.  The team works with the Police to 

identify secondary areas that allow CCTV operators to track suspects from 

the well covered areas into zones where they feel safe.  Operators are 

then able to guide Police to them and affect an arrest.      

 

5.9 In recognition of the outstanding service provided, in 2015 LBHF CCTV 

was awarded the accolade of ‘CCTV Team of the Year’ by the Met Police. 

 

5.10 Hammersmith and Fulham give full access to live and recorded CCTV 

images to both the local Police teams at Hammersmith Police Station and 

the National Counter Terrorism Command Centre (they are only Local 

Authority in London to do so).  This allows the Police to investigate crimes 

on the Borough more swiftly and frees up the CCTV operators to 

concentrate on proactively monitoring areas for crimes rather than  

downloading footage for the Police.   

 

5.11 The control room in Hammersmith Town Hall is often used for a base for 

running police operations.  The Police officers co-locate with the council 

team combining their knowledge with the CCTV operators camera skills to 

target offenders. 

 
5.12 The Police frequently post ‘Super Recognisers’ in the CCTV control room.  

These officers, who are known for their photographic memory of faces, are 

a significant asset and lead to many arrests of ‘wanted’ individuals taking 

place when they are co-located in the control room.       

 

   

Page 122



6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. The recommendations do not affect either Council’s equality duties. 
 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. The legal implications are contained in the body of the report.  
 

8. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. There are no financial implications for the purpose of this report.  
 

 
9 IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 
9.1 The CCTV service provides increased levels of security for residents and 

businesses across the Borough.  Integrated networks operate in the three 
town centres, including the Hammersmith BID area.  Within the control 
room there is dedicated CCTV operator that focuses only on the 
Hammersmith BID area, and is funded by them.  There is also a well-
established safety net radio system that is used by shops, pubs and 
businesses allowing them to directly contact the CCTV operators for 
assistance if it is required.  

 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1.    

 
 

Page 123



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Item Report Author(s) Comments 

28 June 2016 – Policing, Crime and ASB 
 
 

 

Environmental Health Annual Report 2015-16 

To receive the Environmental Health annual report. 

Annie Rammage 
 

Noise Nuisance Prevention and Busking 

To hear about, and comment upon, the services which prevent and 
tackle noise nuisance, and to consider the council’s approach to 
busking. 

Richard Buckley 
 

Strategic Assessment for Crime and ASB 2016/17 

The 2015/16 Assessment was brought to the PAC in November 
2015. The aim of this item is to allow Councillors to comment on and 
influence the priorities 

Claire Rai/Duncan 
Smith 

 

Policing / Community Safety 

To consider joint working between the Police and Council, the work 
of the council funded police officers and how the police involve 
residents in their work. 

Dave Page / Claire 
Rai 

 

CCTV / RIPA 

To consider how well the current network is working (particularly in 
assisting the police) and also to get an idea on what plans there are 
to expand the coverage. 

Janette Mullins / 
Andy Stocker 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 10



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 2 of 4 
 

21 September 2016 – Greening the Borough 
 
 

 

Biodiversity in Hammersmith and Fulham 

To consider the council’s work to improve biodiversity, including work 
in parks and tackling air pollution. Also to consider how the council 
involves its residents in increasing biodiversity. 

Dave Page 
 

Environmental Planning Requirements 

How is the Council ensuring maximum value for residents from large-
scale developments in the borough? How is the impact on the 
environment being mitigated? 

John Finlayson 
 

16 November 2016 – Sport and Leisure 
 
 

 

Sport and Leisure Strategy 

To consider the proposed new sport and leisure strategy, and ensure 
that it includes the best work done in other boroughs and reflects the 
aspirations of the borough’s residents and sports clubs. 

Dave Page / Jardine 
Finn 

 

Sports Grounds Safety Report 

To understand the work of Environmental Health officers in ensuring 
that sports grounds are safe for spectators 

Annie Ramage 
 

  

P
age 125



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 3 of 4 
 

30 January 2017 – Waste, 20 mph Zones and the Council’s 
Budget 

 
 

 

Future Waste and Street Cleansing Services – Involving the 
Citizen  

To receive an update on the work which has been done to improve 
the Council’s Waste and Street Cleansing Services. 

Sue Harris / Kathy 
May 

 

20 mph Zones 

To consider the implementation of additional 20mph zones in the 
borough. 

Nick Boyle 
 

Draft Budget 

To review the 2016/17 budget for the departments. Senior officers 
are to discuss the major areas of challenge for their services and 
highlight areas for scrutiny.  

Mark Jones / Senior 
Officers 

 

 

1 March 2017 –  Parking, Markets and Direct Services for 
Businesses 

 
 

 

Parking 

To consider the improvements made to parking services. 

David Taylor 
 

Street Markets 

To scrutinise the changes which have been made to street markets 
and their impact on local traders. 

Dave Page / Mary 
Byrne 

 

Commercial Waste 

To consider the commercial waste service offered by the council. 

Sue Harris / Mary 
Byrne 

 

 

 

P
age 126



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 4 of 4 
 

4 April 2017 –  Registrars and Cemeteries 
 
 

 

Cemeteries 

To consider the council’s cemetery provision. 

Dave Page 
 

Registrars 

To discuss the services offered by the registry office. 

Dave Page / Layla 
Vaughan  

 

 

CSERS PAC REMIT:- 

 Transport, including roads maintenance, other transport infrastructure 

 Parking policy, traffic management and the relationship with TfL 

 Planning policy and performance and the impact of developments on transport infrastructure and the environment 

 The local environment  

 Street Scene 

 Parks and open spaces 

 Recycling and environmental sustainability 

 Waste disposal, street cleansing, refuse collection  

 Cemeteries 

 Biodiversity 

 Quality of life 

 Community safety 

 Tackling anti-social behaviour 

 Licensing and gambling 

 Neighbourhood governance 

P
age 127


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Environmental Health Annual Report
	Environmental Health Annual Report

	6 Noise Nuisance Prevention
	7 Policing & Crime Update
	8 Strategic Assessment 2016-19
	SA 2016 Final Draft v2

	9 The Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and CCTV in the Borough
	10 Work Programme and dates of future meetings

